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DLG Acquisitons Limited
Report and financial statements for the year 1o 31 December 2022

Strategic report

The Directors present their strategic report and the audited consohdated financial statements for DLG Acquisitions Limited and its
subsidiaries { 'the Group”, "we” or "our”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

OLG Acquisitions Limited { “the Company™} 1s a joint venture equally and ultimately owned by Warner Bros. Dscavery, Ing. and
Liberty Globalplc The Company acquired Al3Media Holdings Limited which operates the All3Med:a production and distribution
business ("Al 3Media’) in September 2014,

All3Media companies have an unrivaled track record of producing popular and cnitica by acclaimed (P, ranging from contemporary
thrilers, d etectve Series, soap operas, comedy, costurne drama, documentary, true crime, natural history, formatted
entertainment, factual entestainment, features, Children’s, and reality programming. More than 40 production compantes are
based in the UK, US, Germany, Be gium, the Netherlands, and New Zealand producing 4.000 hours annually for linear broadcasters,
VOD, social media, and other digital platforms. All3Media’s distributon business, All3Meda Intesnational, exploits programme
rights around the wor ld from its offices in Londen, New York, and Singapore. The Graup s focused on innovation, creative
excellente and entertaining all audiences with brilllant praogramming, from longrunning returning series thzough to the launch of
new formats, new takent, and new business models.

AN3Media produces a well balanced genre mix of programmes with returning shows and nterpationally renowned brands such as
Midsomer Murde:s, Call the Midwife, Gogglebox, Great British Menu, Sort Your Life Out, The Cube, Gold Rush, Berlin ay & Night,
Shortland Street, Brokenwood, Lingo and The Circle. This was supported in 2022 with a rich list of new titles such as The Tourist,
The Thief, He Wife and the Canoe, Ridley, Witness Number 3, The Tinder Swindler, My Conar Body, Polar Bear, and the hit format,
The Traitors, that ha salready soid into 20 terrtones.

All3Media Internationa) distr butes televisicn prograrnmes and formats to more than 200+ territories and has over 30,000 hours of
content in its catalogue and represents third party producers together wih Al3Media’ s own preduction companies.

ntroduction

In 2022, All3Med @ produced mare shows than ever and delivered its highest revenue and EBTDA. The Group has concentrated on
arganic growth and delhvering its key strategic goals - name y - building the format catalogue, accelerating the push into premium
factual, devebping a strong scripted slate, strengthening the dstribution business and invest:ng in the digital business

Financial Summary of the Group Year ended Year ended

310ecember 31 December

2022 2021

£&m £m
Revenue 1,020.8 866 6
EBITDA* 100.2 837
EBITDA excluding the effect of IFRS 15 90.3 717
Cash generated from operat ons 64.3 688

* EBTIOA s calculated by adjust ng operatmg proft for interest, tax, depreciation, amaortisation, excepuionat items {one off items
that impact the Group's EBITDA for the year which do not recur and do not present a fas reflection of the performance of the
Group), transitiona* costs (one off costs of redundancy, property restructur.ng and other restructur ng), transactional costs (costs
relating to corporate development act mty}, costs related 1o deferred consideration and put and call options, but including results
of joint venture s and assocates [see note 5}
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Strategic report (continued)

Financial and business hightights

+  The Group delivered revenue of £1,020.8m and EBITDA of £100.2m in the year 1¢ 31 Decemnber 2022

+  The Group comprises over 40 production companies and produced over 4,000 hours of programming, including over 100+
returning shows, and distributed in over 200 territories.

= The Group maintained its position as a leading production company and once again topped the Broadcast Indie Survey. Raw
topped the survey’s ‘Peer Poll’ for the third consecutive year having “built an unrivalled reputation for producing premium
documentaries”.

+  The Group delivered a number of key programmes including Hollyoaks, Midsomer Murders, The Traitors (UK and US), Sort Your
Life Out, The Cube, Lingo, The Larkins, The Geld, Life on Our Planet, Gold Rush, Cail the Midwife, Berlin Day & N ght and Shortland
Street,

«  The Group continues to develop its relationships with the VOO platforms and is now a key grovider of programming to the man
global VOD players.

*  The Group invested in two production Companles in the year; Build Your Qwn {BYO} Films, a production company launched by
to-CEOs Vicky MeClure and Jonny Dwen, that specialises in both scripted and non-seripted production, and in sports production
specialist, 3Rock.

*  The Group acquired Pos Video & Television B.V. as part of the Group's strategy 1o grow its television production business.

Principal activities and review of the business

The principal activity of the Group is the production and distribution of television programmes. The principa’ activity of the
Company is the halding Company of various All3Media praduction and distribution companies. The Directors do nat anticipate any
changes in those activities over the coming year.

The Group's EBITDA is £100.2m for the year (o 31 December 2022 (2021: £83.7m).

The Group's net debt was £759.4m as at 31 December 2022 {£625.1m at 31 December 2021), see note 27, The currency
denominations of the debt {reler to note 19] reflect the Group’s net cash in-flows, a significant proportion of which are non-sterling
denominated, which is mitigated in part by a natural currency hedge. Gross bank debt and debt external to the Group, excluding
deferred financing fees, was £844.8m as at 31 December 2022 (£713.2m as at 31 December 2021).

Strategy and acquisitions

The strategy of the Group 15 to ach'eve sustainable growth, delivered through a combination of organic growth, acquisition and
geographical expansion. The Group comprises a broad range of production companies that develop, produce and exploit strong
programmae brands that cover multiple genres and geographies, thereby diversifying risk across the Group.

Key performance indicators (“KPis”)
The Group regularly monitors jts KPls and the follow'ng are considered to be the key KPIs for the year to 31 December 2022

Financial profle measures

Revenue was £1,020.8m {2021 £866.6m), 4 17.8% increase on 2021.

EBITDA was £100.2m (2021 £83 7m}, 3 19.7% increase on 2021,

EBITDA excludng the effect of IFRS 16 was £90-3m (2021: £71.7m), a 25.9% Increase on 2021.

Gross profi margin was 25 8% {2021 restated: 26.1%). See page 18 for restatement details.

Cash and cash equivalents (net of overdrafts) as at 31 December 2022 were £81.6m {2021: £82.8m}.

Net cash generated from operatwg activities, before payments related to deferred consideration and put and cali options, was

£61 0m (2021 £60.7m}.

*«  Non-UK revenu€ by destination was 68.9% of total revenue (2021: 65.0%).

«  The top 30 shows for the year represent 45.5% of total turnover {2021: 47 %),

e 32.5%(2021: 22.9%)} of the Group's continuing revenue comes from secondary revenue sources, includ'ng distributlon and
digital revenue (i.e. revenue sources other than those derived from primary production licence fees).

- & & o @

Financial risk managament

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that Include the effects of changes In price risk. credit risk, liquidity
sk, ‘nterest rate cash flow risk and foreign currency risk. The Group manitars these risks and seeks to hm-t the adverse effects on
the financia’ performance of the Group by manitoring leve’s of finance and related costs and taking appropriate act'on where
necessary.
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Strategic report (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk given the nature of the business, but this & monitored ta ensure that this risk does not increase
to an unacceptable level This 15 achweved by comparing price across the Group and our use of exclusive IP and strong talent
relationships to leverage our portfol o and negotiate competitive rates for programmes

Credd risk
The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made, and
gven the Groug's customer base the risk that the Group is exposed to s considered to be relatvely low.

Liguxdity risk
The Group active y monitors 1ts liquid ty position through cash flow forecasting to ensure that it has sufficient available funds for
operations and planned expansions,

Interest rate cosh flow risk
The Group has interest bear Ing assets and liabilities, including cash and debt commitments. Hedging arrangements, such as interest
rdte swaps are in place in order to reduce the expasure to this risk.

Foreign Currency risk

The Group is exposed to fore ign currency risk through its overseas operations, borrowing and through averseas trading. A cross
currency swap 1s in place in order to swap stering debt inta LS dollar debt, 1o be serviced by the Group's earnings in this currency.
Qverseas operations are not hedged as cash flows arising create a natural hedge against the converted debt above.,

See note 30 far further details and disclosures around the Group’s financialrisk management.

Principal risks and uncertainties
There are a number of risks and uncertainties facing the Group. The key operational business risks and uncertainties thar affect the
Group are considered tobe:

»  The current macro economk clirmate including the continued impact of COVID 19 presents a rsk and challenge for the Group.
The impact of inflat ien throughout the Group means that the cost of production has increased since 2019, We continue to
manage this impact by reviewing production protocols and analys ng opportunities 1o produce content more efficiently, with
management maonitor ng and reviewing gross margin KP(s. The econemic enviranment irmpacts television advertising spead
which has an impact on the Group The Group mitigates these risk through geographic diversification, and a focus on the
programming needs of those broadeasters and media phatforms that ace less reliant upan advert'sing as thair main source of
revenue in particular the BBC, the pay televisian networks and SVOD providers such as Netflix and Amazon,

+«  Competition from ather televisran producers for bath pragramming commssons and key taleat The Group attempts to
mitigate ths risk by havwng a spread of entrepreneuniai, creatwvely led companies In the Group which have strang relationships
w th broadrasting comm ssioners and key tafent, encourage an exceptional level of creativity and have a strong pipeline of
new programme formats.

*  Success . audence ratings of the Groug's programming wh ch may influence future cammiss oning decisions. The Group
m tgates this risk by attempting to ensure that the programm ing offered meets the needs of broadcasters, media platforms
and their respective audiences.

e Pressure on cash Fow due to the general economic envronment The Group has sufficient working capitai and adequate
undrawn committed facihties to maigate this risk, including £12.5m undrawn an the £50m revol ng credit facitty.

Future developments

Whie there continues to be an uncertain economic environment, as well as pressure on margins in the production sector, the
Group’s abity to produce and sell programmes internationally, together with its cantinued ability to attract and retain creative
talent, helps to mitigate the impact of this
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Strategic report (continued)

Saction 172 statement

The Directors are fully aware of their duty under section 172(1} of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way which they consider, in
good faith, wou'd be most like'y to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. The Directors
consider that, during the year to 31 December 2022, they have acted Ffairy hetween members having regard to the long term and
the nterests of the Group’s employzes and other stakeholders, including the impact of its actwities on the community, the
environment and the Group's reputatian, when taking decisions.

The Long Term

The importance, relevance and demand for high-quality television content remains strong in an ever-evolying media landscape.

The Drectors are well aware of the dynamic media landscape, in terms of the evalving consumer consumption behaviours, growth
of new global patforms, and changing tastes in demand for genres and formats. The Directors' lang term strategy continues 10 seek
1o position the Group to be able to take advantage of Lhese changes by striving to bring together top ¢reative talent, to develop,
produce and deliver world class television, film and digitat content and to maintain and deve ‘op strong relationships both with the
traditional customers and newer gioba! platforms Where conflicts anse between the short term and long term consequences of a
decision these consequences are we ghed careful y. Whilst precedence is given to long term benefits, the Directors will consider
whether these are outwelghed by short term impacts in reaching their conclusions.

Employees

The welfare and deve'opment of the Graup’s employees is of highest importance to the Directors. See pages 9to 13 of the
Directors’ report for a detailed oversight of the Group’s Equal Opportun ties Policy, Anti-Harassment and Bullying Policy, employee
nvo vement practices, and 1a'ent and tra’ning in tiatives

Business Re'atlonships

The Directars continually seek te maintain and develop strong and mutua'ly beneficial relationships with the Group’s suppliers and
customers The Group engages regularly with its customers and suppl ers through meetings, attendance at television content
markets and other industry events in order o ensure its strategy and va'ues are aligned with customer needs. The Group
maintains strong relationships with and actively contributes to industry bodies

The Directors are committed to complying with al: applicab’e local laws and regulations intluding in relation to modern slavery,
human trafficking and anti-br bery and corruption Contractual provisions are updated to ensure that external counterparties are
obliged to adhere to all applicable laws and regulat ons,

Community ond Enviranment

The Group preducas a broad range of programming across many genres. in doing so, the Directors recognise therr duty of care to ab
parucipants and commit to providing appropriate support at all stages of programme ¢reation-

As part of the wider portfolio of programming, the Group's production compan’es create many high quality and social y responsible
programmes wh'eh raise awareness of key social and topical issues, amming to show broad on-screen diversity and inclusion

The Group Is committed to minimising its environmental 'mpact. Detais of actions taken by the Group can be found on pages 11 to
12 of the Directors’ report.

High standards of business conduct

The Directors strive to operate the business to the highest fevel of conduct. All staff are required to adhere to the Graup's D versity
and Inclus'on Policy and its Anti-Harassment and Bu‘lying Policy and adherence is dr ven by the Group’s management teams.
Operating companies are required to adhere to the Group’s Accounting Policies Manual The Group has an Internal Audit function
which performs routine audits which will review the overall control framework and camphance with these policies and procedures

The Directors treat al external stakeholders collaboratively and fairly, and duly expect a fevel of conduct from them which aligns to
the Group's va'ues. Business practces are reviewed by the Group’s Finance and Controls Committee which meets quarterly and
includes representatives from both sharehalders.
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Strategic report (continued)
Section 172 statement (continued)
Fair dealing between members

The Group has two ultimate corporate shareholders, Liberty Giobal plc and Warner Bros. Giscovery, Inc, who hald equal
representation on the Board. The relevance of each such shareholder may in¢rease or decreasg depending on the matter or Issue
at question, so the Daectors seek to consider the needs and priorities of each shareholder during therr distussions and as part of
thelr decision making.

Approval
Approved by the Board and signed by on its behalf:

Aniénga“ (May 12,2023 1022 GMT+1}

AnfHhingan
Director
12 May 2023
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited cansolidated financial siatements
and independent auditors' report, for the year to 31 December 2022.

Capltal structure

In May 2019 the Group completad a refinancing of its corporate bank loan facilities, entering into a naw €405m first hen facilty
[EURIBOR+3.75%), a £74m second lien facility (SONI1A+8.00%), and 3 £50m revelving credit facility (EURIBOR+3.75%). In November
2019 there was a repricing of the debt which resulted in a reduction of 0.25% on both the first lien and revoiving credit fatility
There have been no changes in FY22,

The Group’s bank loans at 31 December 2022 totalled £551.8m {31 December 2021: £491.4m) as disclosed in note 19 of the
financial statements. The Group’s loan facilities expire between 2025 and 2027.

Business environment and future outlook

*  The market for content is strong with a growing customer base and increased investment.

»  Proliferation of content buyers and new commercial business models.

»  Scaleis important and the Group is well positioned for further acquisitions (belt-on and transformational).

Scripted is a key area for growth with growing global demand, high margin, secondary upside and synergies,

Format success is key given high margins and global secondary exploitation.

U5 growth and geographical expansion is central to AIM strategy.

Integrated distribution model drives exploitation of IP giving control and creating Jong term value in A3M,

Digital platferms driving fast growth opportunities given AVOD spend forecast to double by 2025. Fast growing direct ta
consumer content distribution is an opportunity (e.g. fast channels, AVOD & SVOD).

* o s 2

Charitable contributions

During the period the Group made various charitable donations totalling £305,875 {2021: £266,278). The Group sponsors and
supports a variety of industry bodtes and initiatives, including sponscring student bursaries through the National Film and
Television Schoal, the Royal Television Society and the Grierson Trust and sponsering Edinburgh International Television Festiva s
training programme.

Equal opportunities

The Group strongly believes in and actively supperts the principle of providing equal cpportunities, both to applicants for
employment and to existing colleagues  The Group opposes all farms of discrimination on the grounds of race, colour, nationality,
ethric or national onigin, age, religion or phi'osaphical belief, gender, gender reassignment, marital er civil partner status, sexual
orientation, palitical view, pregnancy, maternity, or disability. No differentials are operated in salary or contractual terms based on
any of these factors.

The Group’s Equal Opportunities Pebey s m hne with current legisiation, and is reviewed and updated frequently. The policy clearly
identifies acts of associative discriminat'on and perceptive d'scrimination making it clear to colleagues what these types of
discrimination are and how they can be avoded.

The policy applies to every Group colleague {including each employee, worker and individual who is engaged under a contract for
service) who 15 mvolved in any aspect of the management of employment and to all colleagues whe make decisions or
recommendations concerning recruitment, remuneration, promotion, training, demaotion, transfer, and other terms, conditions, or
privileges of employment. It also appl es to al colleagues in their relations with other colleagues. This includes giving full and fair
consideration {having regard to the person’s particular aptitudes and abilities) to applications for employment that disabled
persans {as defined in the Equality Act 2010) make to the Group. Furthermore, the Group is committed to continuing the
employment of any employee of the Group whao has become disabled during the period in which the Greup employed them,
whergver passible. The Geaup 18 cammitted to providing reasonable adjustments, training, and development and to continuing to
support their career development.

The Group fully supports the rights and opportuniies of all people to seek, obtain and hold employment without discrimination or
harassment and has adapted all employment policies in line with changes in legisiation.

The Group has 2 separate Diversity and Inclusion Policy, setting cut best practice and the Group’s commitment ta supporting
diversity and creating an inclusive culture The policy promotes a diverse workforce and an inclusive culture and environment in
which all people are accepted and treated with respect, and in which colleagues are able to reach their full potential and deliver
their best work,
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Directors’ report (continued)

Equal opportunities (continued)

In 2022, the Group appointed its first Head of Diversity, Inclusion and Equity to support and promote inclusive init'atives. Reporting
directly to Group COQ the rale works across allareas of the busness, collaborating with senior management across the Group, and
waorking close’y with the Talent, HR and Resourcing teams,

Anti-harassment and bullying

AlizMedia is committed to upholding the princ ple of equal opportunities and we oppose all forms of discrimination. The Group's
anti harassment and bullying policy dovetaik with the Group's equal opportunities policy, dwers ity and inclusion policy and
disciplinary policy. The Group is romm tted to providing a warking environment that is free from bullying and harassment and
ensuring everyhody who works for the Group in whatever capacity s treated with dignity and respect.

Everybody working i any capacity for the All3Media Group has a specific responsibility to operate within the boundaries of the
Group’s anti-Ha rassment and bullying polcy. Everybody has a personal responsibility to ensure that their ewn behaviour and
treatment of others is dignified and respectful at all times. ndwiduals are encouraged ta speak out in the event that they
experience any form of inappropriate behav our or witness unacceptable behavious in others in order to support efforts in tackling
and preventing bullying and harassment in whatever form it may take. Managers must ensure that all staff understand the
standards of behaviour expected of them and to take action when behaviour falls below its requirements.

Staff are encouraged o disclose any instances of harassment or inappropriate behaviour of which they hecome aware to their
Manager, their Company HR representative or to All3Media Group HR. Where individuals fe¢l unable to raise their concerns with
anybady with-n their Company or at A[BMedia, the Group has a free bullying and harassment compaint s helpline, wh ch is run
independent ly by an organisation calted Telllane. This is a separate service and externat of the A#3Media Group Tell Jane can also
provide Group companles with bespoke anti harassment and bullying training for both staff and freelancers,

Where an individual has concerns that they believe may amount to whistleblowing, there is signpost.ng to the Whistleblowing
palicy. The All3Media Group has a separate whistleblowing support line, run by Protect, an mdependent whistleblowing charity.

The Group provides an Assistance Programme with LifeWarks which 1s available to everybody working for the A3Media Group
regardless of the type of contract they are employed or engaged under. The Assistance Programme provides immediate and
confidential help for any work, hea'th or Me concern and offers access to up to six counseling or CBT sessions. The Assistance
Programme can be accessed 365 days of the year, 24 hours a day and 15 available by telephone, web, or mobile app. The Assistance
Programme remains available to those wha leave the Group, for a further 18 months after an end date.

Contact deta s for the Assistance Programme, Tell Jane and Protect helplines are ncluded 1n the People Handbook and are also
accessible in the Knowledge Library (intranet j on the Group’s communications pfatform; Workpiace Now,

The anti-harassment and bullying policy is regularly reviewed by the Group and the Group takes steps to monitor its
effectvenass.

Employee involvement

The Group has a comprehensive People Handbook, which 1s updated in line with changes in statute and reissued twice a year. The
Group a'so 1ssues management gmdance documents which provides step by step instruction on handling comphance and
employment matters, such as right to work and sponsarship pracedures.

There are a number of init atives across the Group which encourage employee involvemneat, for example, a Group level health and
safety forum and a head of production werking Group These ntiatives provide an opportunity for the operating companies in the
Group ta share and discuss current practices and industey changes.

The Group 1s connected via Warkplace Now, a global platform to suppert connectrity

Tailent and Training (nitiatives

During 2022, The Group's preductions paid into the relevant industry funds; Unscripted UK productions caoniribute 0.25% of the
commssion budget into a fund, with the contributions equally split between the broadcaster and production company; and the

Group drama companies were active contributors to the High-End TV (HETV) Trainmg Fund for scripted production.

In addition to the industry funds contributions, the Group participates In vacious industry placement programmes, warking with
many stakeholders and diversity nitiatives.

10
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Directors’ report {continued)

Talent and Training Initiatives {continued)

in 2022, the Group supported:

The Scottish PACT Trainee Scheme (in coflaboration with Creative Scotland}.

A Grierson Trust tramee, with a four week placement at Wise Owl in Leeds.

Rovyal Television Soc’ety’s Bursary Scheme far undergraduates from sooie economic disadvantaged backgrounds.

Development of the Royal Television Saciety's Training Academy and new muni MBA programme,

€dinburgh Internationa’ Television Festwal’s (EITF} online training programme, The Network, which supported 30 new

entrants inte the industry.

«  New Voices Awards (Drama Scripted and Comedy), a further Edinburgh initiatve, which Is a celebratlon of merging
writers, presenters, and Oirectors from underrepresented backgrounds,

. " =

Qther 2022 initiatives included.

*  Partnering with the National Film and Television School for its Writing TV Pilot and TV Drama,

*  Supporting lcomc Steps, 3 local south London enterprise scheme, which supports young people from disadvantaged
backgrounds.

»  Contributing to the British Forces Broadcasting Services Academy’s inaugural Production Management training course for
veterans wanting to transtion into the industry.

*  Delivering six management courses across the Group in Creative Leadership, Effective Management and Leading High
Perfarmance.

® 32 people qualifed as MentatHealth First Aiders across the Group with a refresher caurse and Managers Mental Health
Awareness courses a'so available.

Carbon and Environmental Reporting

The Group is committed to contributing to environmental sustainability, conducting sts business in a responsible way, and
minimising any negative impact on the environment. The Group has an Environmanta! Susta:nability Policy identifying Group aims
and aperating company objectives. The Group has participated in the sector wide Albert consartium since its inception in 2011,
with an aim to creating positive change to protect the environment,

Thraugh Albert, the Group uses the online carbon calculator tool to assess the env ronmental \mpact of individual productions This
data is combined with both production and non-product'on financial data points, to bu'ld an accurate picture of our environmenta!
impact as defined by against the Green House Gas Protoco:,

The Group's Net Zero Strategy is identifying what it would take for the Afl3Media Group to achieve a science-based target of Net
Zero carbon omissions globally by 2030, Accurate, science-based data underpins our strategy, working with environmental data
experts to ensure that the Group has the correct systems and measures in place to check our progress. Running in tandem with a
better understanding of our impact, is a development of strategies and policies, both internal and spanning our value chains, to
drive deep strategic decarbonisation.

The Group is committed to implementing an energy management system (EnMS) in our offices which is compliant with industry
standards and regulations and ara switching to green energy supplers, reducing our water use. recycling our waste, and promoting

smarter business travel solutions at all properties

The Group has followed the 2022 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has used the 2022 UK Government's
conversion factors for company reperting.

11
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Directors’ report (continued)

Carbon and Environmental Reporting {continued)
The Group hasused the control appraach, whereby the Company accountsfor 100 percent of the GHG emssions (and energy) over
which t has cantrol. The report is at Group leve)and includes infermation of subsidiaries who are required to report.

Type of emission Actlvity kWh fitres tC02e % of total
Natural gas 1,067,374 - 195 356%

Scope 1 Propane Gas - 14,284 22 4.0%
Sub-total 1,067,374 14,284 217

Scope2 Eectrioty 1,706.609 . 330 50.9%

Total gross emissions 2,773,983 14,294 547 100.0%

Intensity mettic

Number of employees 918
Tonnes of CO2e per employee 0.60
Note:

1 The table above ntfudes all subsidianes deemed to be ‘large” under the terms defined in the Companies Act.

2 We have chosen the metric gross global scope 1 and 2 emissions tn tonnes of CO2e per tonne per employee as this best
represents the energy consumption for our busivess and in our industry sector.

Going concern

The Group has net Liabilities of £180.8m at 31 December 2022, The Grougp's iabilit es mclude £735 8m of lpans from banks and
shareholders that are not repayable before 2027. Management has undertaken a reforecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarias. The resuiting impacts have heen compared to the Group’s funding sources, compns.ng a revolving credit
facility of £50.0m {which was £32 5m drawn as at 31 December 2022), and show that the Group can continue as a gaing concern
and meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for a period of not less than 12 months fellowing the date on which the Report and
financial statements of the Group are signed.

Through the analysis, which Included the simulation of a plausible downside scenano, the Directars have verified that the Company
and the Group have sufficlent cash flow resources to maintain aperations for the foreseeable future. The Daectors therefore
cantinue to adopt the going concern basis (n preparing the Report and financial statements.

Dividends
Total dividends of Enil {2021: £12,7m} were paid by the Company during the year to 3] December 2022, Total dividends of £9.5m
{2021: £9.4m) were pald by subsidiaries to their minor1y shareholders during the year to 31 December 2022.

Nete that the Francial risk management and future developments are currently disclosed i the strategic report,

Directors

A st of Dwectors who served during the year and up to the date of signing of the f.nanoal statements s shown on page 3 of the
financialstatements.

The Group mainta'ns hability insurance for its Directors and Qfficers, which 1s a thard party indemnity provision for the purposes of

the Companies Act 2006. The policy was in force during the year and up o the date of approval of the Report and fnancia:
statements

12



DLG Acquisitians Limited
Report and financeal statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilitias in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report and financial statements :n accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare f-nancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the d rectors have
prepared the Group and the Company firancial statements n accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards

Under company law, Directars must not approve the financlal statements unless they are sat-sfied that they give a true andfa r
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the prafi or loss of the group for that perind. in preparing the
fnanoalstatements, the Directors are required to.

= selcct suitable accounting policies amd then apply Urern cunslstently,

+  state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subect to any materal
departures disclosed and explained i the firancial statements,

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concern bas's un'ess it « inappropriate to presume that the group and
company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for safeguard ng the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and det ection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Dirgctors are alse responsible for keeping adequate accountmg recerds that are suffic.ent 1o show and explain the Group’s and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any twne the financial pos tion of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of ea<h Birector in office at the date the directors’ report s approved.

s 50 [ar as the D rector 1$ aware, there is no re‘evant audit information of which the Group's and Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

«  theyhave laken allthe steps that they ought to have taken as a Director n order ko make themselves aware of any refevant
audit informatwon and to establish that the Group’s and Company’'s aud tors are aware of that infarmation.

Independent auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have ind 'cated their willirgness to be reappainted for another term and appropriate
arrangements are beng made for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the absence of an Annual General Meeting

The Directors confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

I.  the financial statements, prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, give a true and far
vew of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
cansolidation taken as a whole;

2. the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the busness and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consol dation taken as a whale, Together with a description of the prencipal
risks and uncertainties that they face; and

3. the report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business medel and strategy.

Approved by the Board and s\gned on its behalf:

An-Mffingahh (May 12, 2023 10:22 GMT+1}

Anil Jhingan
Director
12 May 2023
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DG Acquisitions Limited
Report and fnancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, DLG Acquisitions Limited's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”):

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group's loss
and the Group’s and Company's cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adoptled international actounting standards as applied in 2ccordance with
the provisicns of the Companies Act 2006; and

» have been prepared in accordance wih the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the finanoal statements, included within the Report and financial statements (the "Annual Report”), which
comprise: Group and Company balance sheets as a1 31 December 2022; the Group income statement, Group statement of
comprehensive income, Group and Company cash flow statements and Group and Company statements of changes it equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the finangial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basls for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (“ISAs {UK!*) and applicable law. Our
responsibitities under 15As (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requiremants that are relevant to eur audit of the hnancial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accaunting in the
preparation of the financial statements Is appropriate.

However, because not 3ll future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Reporting on other information

The other infarmation comprises all of the information in the Annual Report ather than the financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otharwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur vespoansibility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, ar
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conciude whether there (s a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement af the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities,



DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financlal statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
(continued)

Reporting on other information (¢ontinued)
With respect to the Strategic report and Directors report, we atio tonsidered whether the disclosures required by the UK Compan es
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the tourse of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requ res us also to report certam opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, basad on the work undertaken in the course of the audi, the information given in the Strategic report and Drectors’
report for the year ended 31 Dacember 2022 is consistent wth the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit.
we did not identify any material missiatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ report.

Responsihilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Oirectors’ responsihbilities in respect of the firancial statements, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the apphcable framework and for being satished that
they give a true and fair view. The Directors are a<o reésponsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparat on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company’s abibty to cont nue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directars efther intend 1o liquidate the group or the company or to cease operatons, or have no reahstic afternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an 3uditors’ repert that includes aur opimion. Reasonable assurance s a
high level cf assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misslatements can ar.se from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to nf'uence the eronamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia!
statements.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non compliance with laws and regulations. We desgn procedures i ine with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detert materia® misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting rregu arit s, includmg fraud, is detailed below.

Based on aur understanding of the Group and industry, we idertified that the principal risks of non-complance with laws and
regulations related to the Compamas Act 2006 and tax fegisation, and we considered the extent to which non.compliance might
have a material effect on the financal Ratements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudu'ent
manipulation of the financial statements Oncluding the nsk of override of contrals), and determined that the principa’ risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entnies to revenwe and management bias wn accounting estimates. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

» Discussions with management intluding tonsideration of known or suspected instances of nan-compliance with laws and
regulation,

= |dentifying and testing journals, in particular journal entries pasted with unusual account combinations,

o Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant account hg estimates,

s Reviewing financial statement d's¢losures and testing to supponting dacumentation tc assess compliance with applcable laws
and regulations.

15



DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for theyear to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
{continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures de xribed above, We are less tikely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance wkh laws and regulations that are not closaly related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud 1s higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, far example, forgery or intentanal msrepresentations, or through coflusion .

A further descrigtion of our responsibdities for the aud i of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org uk fauditorsresponsiblities. This description forms part of our audiars’ report

Use of this report
This report, includ ing the opmnions, has been prepared for and enly for the Company’s members as a hody M accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in grving these apinions, accept or

responsibi ¥ty for any other purpose or ta any other per san to whom this report ks shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our pricr consent in writing

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 tion reporting

Underthe Compan €5 Act 2006 we are required to report to you £, 1n our opinion:

« we have not obtamed all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adeguate account ng records have not been kept by the company, or returns adeq for gur audit have not been received from
branches not visted by us; or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* the company financia!statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have na excepions to report arising from this responsibility.

73

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutary Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory AudRors
kondon

12 May 2023
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Repart and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Group income statement

Cantinuing operations

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Admunistrative expen »es

Other aperating income
Amortisation of intangble asets

Group operating profit

Share of operating {loss} / profit of joint ventures
Share of operating loss of astoates

Total operating profit: Group and share of joint ventures and associates

Finan¢e income
Finanze costs

Loss before tax
Tax charge on Joss
Loss for the year from cantinuing operations

Loss for the year
Less: Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Note

12

15
15

10

Restated *
Year ended Year ended
31 Decemmber 31 Decemnber
2022 2021
£000 £'000
1,020,793 866,570
{757,330} (640,120)
263,463 126,450
{216,805) (191,010}
207 58
{6,394} {9.944)
40,471 25,554
{220} 802
(88} {219}
40,163 25,137
15,088 21,933
[83,978) (65.015)
[29,727) [16.945)
(9,425) {1,299)
{39,152) (18,224)
{39,152) (18,244)
{20) [175)
{39,172) (18,419)

* The comparatives hove been restoied 1o correctly present Staff casts amountng to £13,277,000 wichin Cost of Soles, rother than
Administrotive costs. The restatements have na impect on the balance sheet nor the cash flow statement
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DLG Acquisition s Limited
Report and financial statements for the year tc 31 December 2022

Group statement of comprehensive income

Loss for the financial year

-Group

- Joint ventures
Associbles

Total |oss for the financial year

Other comprehensive (loss)fincome that will not be reclassified subseguently to
profit or loss:

- Exchange difference on retranslation of net assets of subsidiary undertakings

- Other reserves movement

Total ather comprehenswe (loss)/incame

Total comprehansive loss

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
-Owners of the parent
Non controlhing interests

Total comprebensive loss

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

€000 £000
(38,844) (18,827}
(220) 802
(88) (219}
(39,152) [18,244)
{1,030} 2,280
{1,030) 2,280
{40,182) {15,964}
(40,288) (15.,982)
106 13
[40,182) {15,964)
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DLG Acquisition s Limited

Report and financalstatements far the year to 31 December 2622

Group balance sheet
Registration number: 09023753
as at 31 Recember 2022

Non-current assets

Goodwill and intangible assets
Property, plant and equlpment
Right of use assets
Investments in assoclates
Investments in jaint ventures
Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Currént assets

Iventaries

Trade and other recevables
Carporation tax asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables: due within gne year
Lease hab:ldies

Corporation tax liabilties

Borrowings

Net current assets / (lTabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and othar payables: due after more than one year
Lease liabilities

Provisians for habilities

Borrowings

Net lhabilities
Nan-tontrolling interests
Net liabilities attributable to owners of the Company

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital

Share premium account

Accumulated losses

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
17

Note

12
13
14
15
15
18
20

16
17

22
14

19

z1
14
24
19

25

26

26

2022 2021
£'000 £000
535,605 532,036
15,297 15,884
37,459 39,995
2,944 1,862
742 962
2,107 1,949
16,682 16,445
610,836 609,133
267,402 175,774
361,476 290,090
2,006 1,239
81,641 82,793
712,525 549,896
(536,712} (484,745)
(10,043} (10,335}
{1,869} {2,076)
(93,590} {71,962)
(642,214} {569,118)
70,311 {19,222}
681,147 589,911
(62,699} (36,506}
(39,871) (42,771}
{12,356) {5,861}
(747,048) (635.959}
(861,974) (721,097}
{180,827) (131,186}
{2,240 (2,234}
{183,167) {133,420}
3 E!

1 1
(183,171) {133,424)
(183,167) {133,420)
2,340 2,234
(180,827) {131,185)

The financial statements on pages §#8 to 78 were approved by the Board of Drrectors on 12 May 2023 and signed an its behalf by:

Anifflingah 'Way 12, 2023 10:22 GMT+ 1
Anil Jhingan
Director
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DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and financial statements far the year to 31 December 2022

Company balance sheet

Registration number: 09023753
a3 at 31 December 2022

HNon-current assets
vestments

Trade and other recervables
Deferred tax assets

Current assats

Trade and other recervables

Corporation tax asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Current abilities

Trade and other payables: due within one year
Borrowings

Net current assets
Tota) m3sets jess curvent liablities

Non-current Tiabilities
Trade and other payables: due after more than ane year

Deferred tax lighildes
Borrowngs

Net assets

Capital and raserves
Caledup share capital
Share premium account
Retamned earnings

Total aquity

14
The financial statements on pages 38 to 78 were approved by the Board of Diectors on 12 May 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

A é‘u 20 M 12 2023102261941

Ard Jhingan
Divectar

15
18
20

17

22
19

21

1%

5
26
26

2022 2023
£000 £000
697,921 605,802
26,594 37,110

- 2.035

724,515 644,947
69,799 395,545
184,638 140,804
254,437 536,349
{141,600) {458,731}
(31,293) {31,293)
{172,893) [490,024)
81,5494 46,325
806,059 691,272
{17,946) 16,231}
{2,830) -
{722,626) {631,859)
{743,402} (638,120)
62,657 53,152

3 3

1 1

62,653 $3,148
62,657 $3,152
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial stataments for the year to 31 December 2022

Group statement of changes in equity

Total equity
Callad-up Share attributable Non-
share premium  Accumulated to owners of  controlling Total
capital account losses the Company interest equity
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £°000 E'000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,478 {313,811) {95,330) 2,216 {93,114)
Comprehensive {loss)/income -
{Loss)/proht for the financral year {18,419) {18,419} 175 {18,244)
Other comprehensive income/{loss).
- Other reserve movements - - 2,437 2,437 {1572) 2,280
Total comprehensive (loss YYcome - {15,982 {15,982) 18 {15,964)
Share premium reduction - (218,477) 218,477 - -
Tronsoctions with owners:
- Dwidends to shareholders - - {12,719) (12.719) (12,719)
- bividends to subsidlares’ non controlling - - 19,389) {9,389) - {9,389)
interests
Total transact'ons with owners - - {22,108) (22,108) - (22,108}
At 31 December 2021 3 1 (133,423 {133,420) 2,234 (131,186)
At 1 January 2022 3 1 (133,424) {133,420} 2,234 ({131,186)
Comprehensive (loss)fincome:
-{Loss)/profit for the financial year - {29,172) 39,172 20 {319,152)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) -
- Currency translation differences - - {1,116} {1,116) 86 {1,030)
Tiatal comprehensive {loss)/income - - {40,238} {40,288} 106 (40,182)
Share premium redugtion . - B - - B
Transections with owneérs
-Dividends to shareho'ders - . . - - .
Div-dends to subsidiaries” non cantrolling - - {9,459} [9,459) - [9,459)
interests
Totaltransaction's with owners - - {9,459) {9,459) - (9,459}
At31 Decamber 2022 3 1 [183,171) (183,167) 1,340 {180,827]
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OLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Company statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2021

Comprehensive (loss) / income.

-Profit for the financial year
Total comprehensive income

Share premium reduction

Trensactions with owners:
- Dividends to shareholders
Total transactions with owners

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the financial year

- Qther reserves movement

Totalcomptrehensive income

Tronsactions with owners:
Oridends to shareholders
Total transactions with owners

At 31 December 2022

Called-up Share Retained Total

share capital premium earnings / equity

£000 account {accumulated £'000
£°000 losses)
£°000

3 718,478 (152,813} 65,668

' 203 203

203 203

- {218,477) 218,477 -

- - (12,719) {12,719}

M {12,719) {12,719}

3 ) 53,148 53,152

3 1 53,148 53,152

- - 7,005 7,005

- - 2,500 2,500

- . 9,505 9,505

3 1 62,653 62,657

3 1 62,653 62,657
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Group cash flow statement

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Payments related to deferred consideration and put and call options

Net cash generated from operating actlvitios

Investing activities

Dividends received from associates

Praceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangble assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired

Amounts (paid) / received to joint ventures and associates
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Net settlernent of swaps

Dividends paid to shareholders

Dwidends paid to subsidiaries’ non-controlling interests
Increase 1n borrowings

Praceeds on issue of shareholder loan notes

Payments made on lease liabil ties

Net cash used in from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchang e rate changes

Cash and tash equivalents at end of year

27

27

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
54,323 68,472
{3,324) (7.791)
{56,975) (21,132}
4,024 39,549
153 600
168 21
(a,438) (1.343}
{4,552) {4,894}
3,167 {929}
[625) 102
3,217 679
(2.910) {5.764)
{25,960} (20,681)
{2,608} {9,241)
- {12,719)
(9,508) (9,389])
- 12,589
55,000 17,247
(14,114) {14,696)
(4,188) {36,850)
(3,073) {2,105)
82,793 86,650
1,922 {752)
81,641 82,793
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Repart and finan¢alstatements for the year to 31 December 2022

Company cash flow statement

Operating activities

Cash {used in)/generated from operations

Income taxes received

Paymentsrelated to deferred ¢censideration and put and call aptions

Net cash used in from operating activities

Investing activitias

Dividends received from subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsid ares

Interest received

Amounts recewed from intercompany barrowings

Net cash generated from/{used in) in investing actwities

financing activities

interest paid

Net settlement of swaps

Equity dividends paid

Payments against intercompany borrowings
‘ncrease in borrowings

Proceeds on issue of shareholder loan notes

Nat cash ganerated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivatents at end of year

Note

27

27

Year ended Year endad
31D b 31 Dv b
022 2021
£000 £'000
{13,375) (5,580}
- 142
{36,556) {17,823)
(49,931) {23,261)
31,689 41,533
- {8.447)
2,296 99
11,000 -
44,985 33,185
{21,585} (18,556)
{9,607) (9,241)
- (12,719)
{3,006) 15,951
- 12,500
55,000 17,247
20,802 5,182
15,856 15,106
71,312 56,444
(2) 762
88,166 72,312
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DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements
1. General information

OLG Acquisitions Limited [registered number 09023753) {the “Company”) is a company incorporated in the United Kingdorn and
domiciled in England and Wales under the Compames Act. The Company i$ a private company mited by shares The address of the
registered office is given on page 3 The nature of the Graup’s operations and principal activit'es are set out in the Strategic report
on pages4to 8.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates Foreign operatlons are nicluded in accordance with the polices set out in note 2

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Accounting polices that relate to the financial statements as a whole are set out below, whi'e those that relate to specific areas of
the financial statements are shown n the correspond'ng note All accounting palicies have been consistently appleed to all the years
presented.

The financial statements have been ve been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as appl'cable to companies reporting under those standards

The financial statements have bean prepared on the historicat cost basis, madified by revaluation of financial assets and financia®
liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss [as applicable) . Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting policies adapted are set out below

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in
its entirety, which are descrbed as follows

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are nputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or fability, either
directly or indwectly, and

. Level 3 ‘nputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated us:ng another valuation
technique . n @ stimating the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
tability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or iabs'ity at the measurement
date.

Fair value for measuremant and/or disclosure purposes in these financ-al statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that arg within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scape of 1AS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not falr value, such as net realisable value in 1AS 2 or value in use in
145 36

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Anumber of interpretations and revisions to existing standards have been issued which will be applicable to the Group's financ al
statements in future years, but wil not have a mater'a’ effect on reported profit or equity or on the disclosures In the financia
statements.

Basis of consaolidation

The Group financial statements consalidate the financial statements of DLG Acquisitions Limited and all its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to 31 December 2022. Mo profit and loss account is presented for DLG Acquisit'ons Limited as permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Subsidiaries are inciuded in the Group's financiat statements using the acquisition method of accounting. The results of subsidianies
acquired or disposed of during the year are consalidated from the effectve date of acquistion or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate- Purchase consideration is allocated to the assets and liabilities on the basis of their fair value at the date of
acquisition. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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2. Significant accounting poficies (continued)

Basis of consolidation{continued)

Entities in which the Group holds an interest on a fong term basis and are jointly contralled by the Group and one or more ventures
under a contractual arrangement are treated as joint ventures. In the Group financ lal statements, joint ventures are accounted for
using the gross equity method.

Entities, other than subsidiary undertakangs or joint ventures, in which the Group has a participating interest and over whose
operating and financial pokicies the Group exercises a significant influence, are treated as associates. In the Group financial
statements, associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to bring the
accounting pokties used into line with those used by the Group

Revenue recagnition

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and services (o its customers The Group recognises its revenve and
attributable profit based on the satisfaction of performance oblgations, and an assessment of when contral is transferred to the
customer.

Customer contracts come in @ variety of forms across the Group but primaridy fall into three categories: commissioned finished
pragrammes, distribution by thied parties, and distributon by the Group. For each contract, a set of performance obligations is
identified, and a portion of the transaction pnce is assigned to each. Transaction prices will generally be fixed in the contract, but
where variable consideration exists, an estimate of ks value will be inciided. Revenue and the attributable profit are recognised on
the satisfaction of the Identified obligations. Transaction prices are calculated exclusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes.

For commsioned finished programmes, the Group considers it has fulfilled its performance obligations at a point in time on
delivery of each episode to the customner. Both under and overspends are accounted for once known and are recognised in
accordance with the episod £ dedvery pattern. Provision is made for any loss making contracts as soon as identified (i.e. expected
overspend is in excess of onginally antc pated margin).

R on prog ras distributed by third parties and other ancitlary revenues are recognised once the entity has been notified
of sums due to it.

for finished programmes and formats dstributed by the Group, revenue is recognised once contracted, provided that the product
ts available for exploitation by the customer and the license period has commenced.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales are recogmsed in | ne vith the atinbuted revenue recognised in the year, for each type of revenue received in the
year . Please refer to Revenue recognition accounting policy for details of recognition.

Goodwill

Purchased gaodwil:arising on the acqus tion of subsidhary undertakings and businesses representing any excess of fair value of
consideration over the fa i vatue of net assets acquired is capitalised as an intangible asset and amortised over its useful economc
ife. The balance of goodw {tand other ntangible assets 1s reviewed for impairment an an annual basis and written down to its
recoverable amount if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable.

Other intangible assets

Programme title mtangib ke assets are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amortised on a straight Nne
basis over the expected useful economic {ife of the titles, typically wo to seven years. These assets are tested for impairment at Jeast
annuatly if indicator s for impalrrent are present, for the de-commissioning of a specific programme title. Intellectual
property is generated on capitalisatian of specific content creation costs. It is amortised on a straight-fine basis over the expected
useful economic life of the content, typically two to three years, once the asset is avavable to use.

Computer software intangibles are generated on capitakisation of internally-generated costs which occus during the application

deve bpment stage. Software costs incurred during the preliminary project and post Implementation stages are expensed as
incurred, Any ‘off the she!f software purchased can only be capitalised as an intangible asset if & is expected to generate future
economic benefts. They are amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful economic life of the content, typically two to
three years, once the asset is available to use.
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2. Significant accounting palicias [cantinuad}

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, p'ant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost comprses the purchase price of the asset and
directly attributable costs in bringng the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management

Dapreclation
Depreciat an s calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment evenly over their estimated useful Jives at the

following annual rates:

Freehold property Quer 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20- 50%
Furniture, fixtures, plant and equipment 20-50%
Motor vehicles 20-25%

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impawrment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying va lue may not be in line with the remaining estimated useful life

Fixed asset investments
lavestments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying values of fixed asset investments are
reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cal: deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that ace readi-y
canvertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories
fnventories should be va'ued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value should be based on estimated selling
price less any lurther costs expected to be incurred to completion.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is deemed Lo be or containa
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of t:me in exchange for consideration To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically
distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. if the supplier has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of
use; and

. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asser. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making rights that are
maost relevant to changing hew and for what purpose the asset is used.

Operating lease rentals below the threshold for application of IFRS 16 are chaiged to the income statement on a straight ling basis
over the period of the lease.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately frem those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The pension cast charge disclosed in note 7 represents contributions payable by the Grovp
to the fund.
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2. Significant accounting palicies (continued)

Taxation

The tax expense for the year compnises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognsed in other comprehensive mcome or directly in shareho'ders’ funds. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive ncome or directly in sharehalders’ funds, respectively.

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the company operates and generates taxab'e income Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect Lo situations 1n which applicable tax regulation s subject to interpretation. 1t establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected ta be paid to the tax authorties,

Deferred tax 1s recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying
amounts in the financia| statements. However, deferred tax kabifit'es are not recegn sed if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; or arise from initial recognition of an asset o liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transactlon affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax 18 determined using tax rates fand laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settied

Deferred income tax assets are recogn sed only 1o the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits wiil be available against
which the temporary differences can be uti2ised.

Deferred income tax assets and llabi! tres are offset when there is a legally enforceab® right to offset current 1ax assels against
current tax liablit'es and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilit es relate 1o mcome taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or differant taxable entities whera there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis

Translation of foreign currencies

{a) Functionol gnd presentation currency

Rems included in the financiat statement s of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary econamic environment
in which the Company operates {‘the functionalcurrency’). The fnancial statements are presentad in ‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is
also the Company’s functional currency

(b} Transactions ond balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the funct onalcurrency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactians or valuation where tems are re measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised In the income statement.

Going concern

The Group has net habil hies of £180,8m at 31 December 2022 The Group’s liabilities include £738 Sm of loans from banks and
sharehalders that are not repayable before 202 6 Management has undertaken a reforecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarios The resulting impacts have been compared to the Group™s funding sources, comprising a revoving credit
facility of £50.0m {which was £32.Sm drawn a5 at 31 December 2022}, and show that the Group can cantinue as 2 going concern
and meet ts 1abilities as and when they fall due for a perod of not less than 12 months following the date on wh ch the Report and
financial statements of the Graup are signed.

Through the analysis, which included the simulation af a plausible downside scenar o, the Directors have verified that the Company

and the Group have sufficient tash flow resources to manta n operations for the foreseeable future The Directors therefore
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Report and financial statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial asset - recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and, as a consequence, has a legal right to receive
cash.

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financia? asset.

All recognised financial assels are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortrsed cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Clossification of finoncial assets
Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categeries:
= those measured at amaortized cost,
+  those to be measured subsequently at fair value, either through other comprehensive incorne (FVTOCI) er through profit
or loss (FVTPL).

Financial asset ot omortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

« Contractual lerms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation is included in finance income in
the prafit or loss. The losses arising fram impairment are recognised in the profit or loss,

Finoncig! gsset at FYTOC!

A 'financial asset’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

« The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
+ The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

However, there are no instruments which have been classified under this category.

financial asset at FVTPL
Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FWTOC), is classified as at FVTPL.
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a graup of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
{i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet} when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards af the asset, or (b} the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Significant accountng policies {continued)

Financial instruments [contmued)

Impairment of financial ossets

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Graup apples the expected credit loss (E€Ltmodel for the measurement and recogn tion of impairment
fass on financial assets measured at amortised cost e g., nvestments, toans and bank balance.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between af contractual cash Fiows that are due to the Graup an zecordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receve, discounted at the originateffective interest rate, with the respective
risks of default occusring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Group is required to consider:

= Al contractual terms of the financiatassets (includ ng prepayment and extension) over the expected life the assets.

» Cash flows from the sale of callateral held ar other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Fingncial linbilities - recognition gnd meosurement
financial Kabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and, as a consequence, has a legal obligation to
pay cash.

Financial liabikties are classified, at initial recognition_as financial habilities at fair value through profit or toss, loans and borrowings,
pavyables, or as derivavives as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payab’es, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings includ ng bank overdrafts

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial [labilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liab ¥kies at fair volue through profit or loss

financial habilties at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabitities held for trading and financial kabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they ara incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Loans and borrowings
After Inital recognition, interest-bearing laans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methad.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortssation process.

Amartised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EiR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecogmition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligstion under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financiallab { ty 15 rep ‘aced by another fram the same lender on substantially different 1erms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substant ally modified, such an exchange or modiication is treated as the de-recogn’tion of the origina' liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respect ve carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsettng finonciol instruments

Financial assets and liabiitres are off set and the net amount 5 reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceab'e right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the jability
smultaneously.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting poficies {continued)
Financial instruments {continued)

Derivative finoncial instruments
The Group enters into & variety of derivat’ve financia: nstruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk, including interast rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Further details of these instruments are disciosed in note 30.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract s enkered inte and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resuiling gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effectve as 2 hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge retationship.

A derivative with a postive fair value 5 recognised as a financial asset whereas a derwatwe with a negative faw value is recognised
as 2 financial hability. A derivative 15 presented 2s 3 non-current asset or a non-current fability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is mare than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled with'n 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities,

Provisions
Provisions are recognsed when the Group has a present obligation [legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be requ red to settle that obhgation and a reliab’e estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision 's measured using
the cash flows estimated to settie the present obligation. its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows [when the
effect of the time va'ue of money 15 material).

When some or al: of the econom ¢ benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, 2
receivable is recosmised as an asset if 2 is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Capital management

The Group’s abjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue as a going concern and provide
returns for shareholders. The Group monitors its capital on a regular and continuous basis, ensuring sufficient capital is in place for
the Group’s ongoing trading requirements.

In addition to the above, we seek to enter into derivative instruments to protect against increases in the interest rates on gur
variable-rate debt and fareign currancy movements, particularly with respect to borrowings that are denominated &n a cuirency
other than the functional currency of the barrowing entity. We have entered into derivative instruments to manage interest rate
and foreign currency exposure with respect to the US Dollar and the Euro.

Further details of the capital structure of the Group can be found in the Directors’ report on page 9.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

3. (Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based an historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of luture events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recagnised in the
period i which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected. There are no critical judgements that have significant
r sk of causing a materialadjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

The estirates that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of agsets and tiabilities within the
next financial year are addressed befow.

Critical accounting estimates and judgemants

{a} impairment of trade and other debtors, contract assets and intercompany balances

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade debtors, contract assets and intercompany balances. When
assess ng the impairment of trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the credit rating of the receivable, the
ageing profile of receivables and historical experience. The expected credit |0ss model was agplied to trade debtors, contract assets
and Intercompany balhnces and the impact was not material. See notes 17 and 18 for the net carrying amount of receivables and
associated impairment provson,

(b} Recoverodifity of work & progress

The Company review s the recoverability of its work in progress, derived from programmes during production which are included in
the Balance Sheet, on a continuous basis. The Company believes that the anticipated revenues will enable the carrying amount of
work in progress to be recovered in fuli that future economic benefits will be recognised by the Group.

{c} Usefuf economic fives of rangibie fixed assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible fixed asscis 5 sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lves and residual
valugs of the assets. The useful economic fives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary 1o
reflect current esbmates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilization and the physical condition
of the assets See note 13 for the carrying amount of the tangible fixed assets.

{d} Corrying value of investments

The Directors believe that the tarrying value of the iInvestments « supported by their underlying net assets. The D rectors carry out
an impairment assessment on the investments held if events or changes in circumistances Indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable In performing the impasment assessment, the prasent value of luture cash flows are calewlated based on three year
hinantial forecasts approved by a Director. Cash flows for the periods beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using the
1.9% histonc long term GDP annual regional growth rate The discount rate applied against the anticipated future cashflows is based
on 2 pre-tax estimated weighted average cost of capital of 10.6% A reasonable change in the key assumplions does not have a
s gnificant mpact on the d fference between value m use and the carrying value,

e} Earn-out & put and coli arrangements

The Kair value of the liab dities in respect of earn-outs and put and cal arrangements are valued based on projected operating results
of the relevant entity, applied to the cakulation as determined by the relevant sa‘e and purchase agreement These are discounted
using a discount rate of 10%. A reasanable change in the key assumptions does nat have a significant impact ¢n the difference
between value in use and the carrylng value

{f} Fair value of derivatives

we perform recurring fair value measurements with respert to our derwvat ve instruments, which are carried at fair value. We use
cash flow valuation models to determ ne the fair va'ues of gur interest rate and foreign currency derivative instruments. Most of
the inputs to these discounted cash flow models cons st of, or are der ved from, observable Level 2 data for substant-ally the full
term of these dervatwe instruments. This observable data includes most interest rate futures and swap rates, wh<h are retrieved
or derived from avallable market data.

{g) Goodwill
The key accounting estimates and judgements are as detai’edin ngte 12.

{h] Intangitles
The key accounting estimates and judgements are as detalled in aote 12.
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4, Revenue

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group operated only one class of business throughout the year, namely the creation, sale and
distribut ®on of television and film programmes and other digital content and refated ancillary services

An analyds of revenue by geographical market destination is given below (excluding turnover of joint ventures and aitac:ates). This
is also considered to depict how revenue and cash Hows are affected by economic factors:

Year to 31 December 2022

Year to 31 December 2021

Origin Destination Origin Destination

£'000 £000 £000 £°000

United Kingdom 737,429 317,109 576,495 303,510
United States of Amer#a 140,673 418,403 152,157 321,682
Rest of the world 142,691 285,281 137,918 241,378
1,620,793 1,020,793 866,570 866,570

An analysis of loss before taxation and net assets/(liabilities) by business location is given be low:

Year to 31 December 2022 Year to 31 Decamber 2021
profit/{loss) Net assets  {Loss] / profit Net assets
befare tax / lliabilitias) before tax 1 {liabilitles)
£7000 £000 £'000 £'000
United Kingdom 38,631 201,842 {19,964} 74,235
United 5tates of America (e87) (11,067) 1,532 (10,748}
Rest of the world 8,613 (64,485} 54,512 (15,695}
46,557 126,290 35,080 47,792
Net finance cost (69,890) - {43,081)
Intangible amortisation and Accummulated losses {6,3%4) - (9,944}
8ank loans and amounts owed to parent undertakmgs - {844,759) - (713,248)
Intangible assets - 535,605 - 532,036
[29,727) {182,864) (16,945) {133.420)

Contract assets held by the Group are accrued revenue of £150.5m {2021: £108.9m). Contract iiabilities are deferred revenue of
E£275.3m [2021: £217.2m). Deferred revenue as at 31 Decernber 2022 was released to revenue in the year and deferred revenue as

at 31 December 2022 relates to new cantracts entered in the year.
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5. Group operating profit

Group operating profit has been arrived at after charging/{crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Oepreciation of Right of Use Assets (IFRS 16}

Prof4 on disposa lof property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating lease charges outside the scope of ifRS 1&:
- Land and buidings

-Equipment

Note

13
14

12

Year ended Year anded
31D b 31 Dy b

2022 2021

£'000 £000

5,295 5,187
10,247 10,542
(74} {s)

6,394 9,944

135 30

303 248

Management deem EBITOA ta be the most appropriate way of managng performance within the business, as it is closely ahgned to

our recurring Cash profits of the Group.

EBTIDA 15 calcy bred by adjusting operating profit for interest, tax, deprecation, amortisation, exceptional itermns {one off items that
mnipact the Group's EBITDA for the year which do not recur and do not present a fair reflection of the performance of the Group),
transitional costs (one-off costs of redundancy, praperty restructuring and other restructuring), transactional costs (costs relating
to torporate deve lopment activity), costs related to deferred consideraton and put and call optiens, but including results of joint

ventures and 35s aerates. See reconc dation of EBTIDA below.

Operating profit

Amartisation of intangible assets

Costs related to deferred compensation, consideration and put & call options
Redundancy, restructunng and transactional costs {e.g. one-off restructuring)

Exceptional costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equpment
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets { FRS 16)
Management fees to shareho ders

Share of operating results of joint ventures and associates
Proft on disposal of property, plant and equipment,

EBITDA

12

13
14

Yeasr anded Yesr endad
31 December 31 Decamber
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
40,471 25,554
6,394 9,944
22,543 16,761
12,665 11,946

- 178

5,295 5,187
10,247 10,542
3,000 3,000
(308) 582

(74) {5}
100,234 83,689
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6. Auditors’ remuneration
Tha analys's of the auditors’ remuneration & as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

022 2021
£000 £000
Fees poyable to the Compoany’s auditors and therr associotes for the pudit of the
Group’s financial statements -

The audit of the Group consohdated financial statements 223 241
- The audit of the Group's subsidiaries 841 847
Total audit fees 1,064 1,188
Fees payuhble to the Company's ouditors for non-oudit services.

-Other services - -
Total non-audit fees - -
Total 1,064 1,188

7. Staff numbers and costs

The average month iy number of persons employed by the Group {inc'ud ng Directors remunerated by the Group) during the year,
analysed by categary, was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Number Number
Production 2,455 1,949
Administration 924 1,024
Sales 53 52
3,432 3025

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Decembar 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £°000
Wages and sa'aries 201,751 173,329
Social security costs 24,021 21,189
Other pension costs 4,845 4,030
230,617 203,548

The Group also has a number of freelance staff, hired on a production basis, whase costs are included within cost of sales and are
not reflected in the abave tab'e.

No Directors' emoluments are paid by DLG Acquisitions Lirited 1o its statutory Directors These Derectars are remunerated by

subsidiary companies of Warner Bros Discovery, Inc. and Liberty Globalplc. In lieu of th's, a management fee is payable by DLG
Acquisitions Limited to subs diary companies of Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. and L'berty Global plc, as disclosed n note 33
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7. Staff numbers and costs {continued)

For the year to 31 December 2022, total Directors’ emoluments included within the management fee came to £1.1m (for the year

to 31 December 2021: £1.1m)

During the same year, amounts wcurred to other Non Drector key management personnel as compensation were.

Aggegate remunerat-on including long-term inceptive schemes
Company pension contributions 1o personal pension schemes

8. Finance income

Exchange differences gain

Bank interest receivable

Net gan arising an financial liabilities classified as Fair value through Profit or Loss
Qther interest receivable

8. Finance costs

Net fo%s arising on financial liabilities classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans

Amortised fees on borrowings

Interest on loans from related parties

Exchange diffarences loss

Cther interest payable

Interest payable on Lease Liabilities

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 Decamber

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

4,140 5,926

] [}

4,146 5,932

Vear ended Year ended

31 Dacember 31 December

2022 2021

£000 £000

- 21,012

3,508 353
11,203

377 528

15,088 21,933

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£000 £'000

- 5760

35,484 28 853

1,330 1.264

16,106 12,419

13,803 -

15,113 13,450

3,142 3,253

84,978 65,015
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10. Taxcharge onloss

Current tax
- UK carporation tax
Current tax on income for the year
Adpustment in re spect of prior year
- Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year
Adpstment In respect of prior year

Share of jaint ventures’ tax
Total current tax
Deferrad tax
-Oniginal ing and reversal of tempcorary differences
- Adjustment in respect of prior year
Effect of change s in tax rates

Tatal deferred tax

Tatal tax charge on loss on ordinary activitias

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'009
987 2,625
{537) {257}
2,230 4,666
{(309) 151
2,371 7,185
2371 7,185
6,911 {6,456)
578 124
(435} 446
7,054 {5,886)
9,415 1,299

The man rate of corporation tax i curzently 19% but this will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023, The rate increase has been
substantively enacted and therefore the deferred tax balances have been recognised at the rate they are expected to reverse.

The tax charge A credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the income statement as follows:

Loss on ordinaiy actwities befare tax
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% [31 December 2021: 19%)

Tax effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

income not chargeab’e for tax purposes

Higher rates of corporation tax on overseas profits

Recognition of deferred tax on previously unrecognised fosses
Adpustments in respect of prior period

Current year insses for which no deferred tax has been recognised
Overseas tax suffered {net of any creditable tax]

Tax rate difference between current tax and deferred tax

Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax opening ba‘ances

Tax charge for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Decernber 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
(29,727} {16,945}
[5,648) (3,220}
15,961 11096
(5.408) (3,965}
279 1.405
- [6,477)
[269) 18
1,868 2,313
516 442
2,561 {759}
(435) 446
9,425 1,259

Other than the amount ¢harged to the income statement, no amounts relating to tax have been recognised in other comprehensive

income and no amounts have b&en recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11. Results attributable to the Parent Company

The profi after tax, before external dwidends, dealt w th n the financaistatements of the Parent Company is £7,005,181 (2021
profit of £203,481).

12. Intangible assets

Camputer

Group Goadwill Content Software Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Janwary 2021 624 675 165,280 - 689,950
Transfers* - - 6,159 6,159
Addrions 4,769 8,122 766 13,657
Exchange adjustment {55) - {18) {71)
At 31 December 2021 529,384 173,402 6,909 709,695
Actumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 (17,1800) (146,635} - (163,735)
Transfers* - - (3,994) (3,994)
Exchangz adjustment - - 14 14
Amortisaton provided during the year - {8,620} {1,324) {9,944)
At 31 December 2021 {17,100 (155,255) {5,304) {177,659)
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2021 512,284 18,147 1,605 532,036
At 31 December 2020 507,570 18,645 526,215
Cost
At 1 January 2022 529,384 173,402 6,909 709,695
Additions 2314 2456 1,947 7,317
Acquisiton of subsidiaries - 2,656 . 2,656
Exchange adjustment 42 - 41 83
Disposal . [a7) (a7
At 31 December 2022 532,340 178,467 8,897 719,704
Accumulatad amaortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2022 {17,100} {155,255) (5.304) {177,659)
Exchange adjustment . - (46) (46)
Amortisation provided during the year - (5,183} [1.211) {6,394)
At 31 December 2022 {17,100) {160,438) (6,561) {184,099)
Net Book Valug
At 31 December 2022 515,240 18,029 2,336 535,605

At 31 December 2021 : 512,284 18,147 1,605 532,036
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Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements [continued)
12. Intangible assets {continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisilions is capitatised with an indefinite useful life and tested annually for impairment. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest Jevels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {‘cash generating
units’). Goodwill is allocated Yo the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination.

The largest elements of the goodwill held within the Group are £145,790,000 (2021: £149,790,000) in respect of All3Media
International Limited, £69,846,000 (2021: £69,846,000) in respect of Lime Pictures Limited, £58,768,000 (2021: £58,768,000) in
respect of Optomen Television Limited and £54,489,000 {2021: £54,489,000) in respect of All3Media Deutshland Limited; per |AS 36
para 134 regarding information for each CGU with goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. An impairment review
has been conducted. The recoverable amount for pacdwill has been determined based on value in use, being the present value of
futuee cash flows based on three-year financial budgets approved by management.

Cash flows for the periods beyond the approved financial budgets have been extrapolated using 3 1.9% historic long-term GDP annual
regional growth rate. The discount rate applied against anticipated future cash flows is based on a pre-tax estimated weighted
average cost of capital of 10.6%, which is deemed applicable to each cash generating unit as they are within the same industry and
exposed to similar risk. A reasonable change in the key assumptions, for example a 5% drop in ERITDA beyond the approved financial
budgets, does not significantly impact the difference between value in use and carrying value.

As a result of the annual imgairment assessment and a review of forecast future cashflows, an impairment of Enil has been made to
goodwill for the year to 31 December 2022 (2021: £nll).

Other intangible assets

Within content intangible assets programme titles are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amaoitised
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of the titles, typically two to seven years. These assets are tested for
impairment at least annually if indicators for impainment, for instance the de-commissioning of a specific programme title, are
present,

Intellectual property is generated on capitalisation of specific content ereation costs, It is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic life of the content, typically three years, ence the asset is available to use.

No intangible assets are held by the Parent Company {2021: £nil}.

*During the prigr y2ar, the Group concluded that certan capitalised software held in Property. plant and equipment was
appropriate to be recognised within Intangible assets
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Report and fnancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

13. Praperty, plant and equipment

Group

Cost

At 1 January 2021

Add tions

Acquired with subsidianes
Transfers*

Dispasals

Exchange adjpstiment

At 31 December 2021

Accurnulated depraciation
At 1 January 2021

Acqu red with subsidianies
Transfers*

Charge for the year
Deposals

Exchange adjustment

At 31 Decamber 2021

Net Book Value
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Cost

At 1 January 2022
Additions

Acguired with subsidiaries
Disposals

Exchange adiustmant

At 31 December 2022

Acgumuiated depreciation
At 1Januvary 2022
Acquired with subsidiaries
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December 1022
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

Furniture,
fixturas,
Freehoild hold plant and Motor

property Imp aquip vehicles Total
£400 £00G £000 £000 £7000
3,833 4,659 19,790 767 29,059
3151 594 3,865 99 4,909

- 792 450 - 1,252

4 (6,159) {6,155)

- - (2,688) (30) [2,718)

- {412} & {406}
4,184 6,059 14,856 842 25,941
{191) (1,873) {8,569) (267) {10.900j

. (579} [448) - {1,027}

- 3 3,994 - 3957
{71} {590} {,364) 162) {5.287)

- (25) 2,726 26 2727

- {18) 354 (5) 333
{262) {3,080 {6,367 (a08) 110,067)
3,922 2,979 8,549 434 15,8384
3,642 2,796 11,221 s00 18,159
4,134 6,059 14,856 842 25,941
17 301 4027 137 4582
{1.687) {6.297} (105) {8.089)

. 267 826 79 1,172
4,301 4,940 13,412 953 23,606
{262) (3,080} (6307} {408} {10.057)
1104) {714) {4,289) {188) (5.295)
- 1,662 6,151 86 7.899
{146} {656) (44) (858)

(366) {2,278) {5,311) {554) (8,308)
3,935 2,662 8,301 399 15,297
3,922 2979 8,549 434 15,884
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

13. Property, plant and equipment

*Ouring the prior year, the Group concluded that certain capitalised softwave heid in Property, plant and equipmenl was
appropriate to be recognised within Intangible assets.

Na property, plant or equipment is held by the Parent Company (2021: Enil}.
14. Leases

Amounts recognised in the balance sheat {Group)

2022 2021
£000 E'000
Right of use asset (NBV)
Buildings 37,155 39,519
Equiprment 120 280
Vehicles 184 196
37,459 39,995
Lease liabilities
Current (10,043) {10,335}
Non-current {39,871) (42,771)
{49,913} {53,106}
Additions to right of use assets during the year were £3,374,000 {2021: £6,850,000).
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or lass
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
E£°000 £°000
Depreciation charge on right of use assets
Buddings 9,874 10,147
Equipment 241 273
Vehicles 132 122
10,247 10,542
Other charges
Interest expenses fincluded within finance cost note 10} 3,142 3,253
Expense related to non-IFRS 16 leases 414 278
1,556 3,531

The total cash outflow for leases i the year was £14,114,009 (2021: £14,696,000;

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retall stores, equ-pment and vehicles Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of & months to & years, but may have extension opt'ons as des¢ribed below.

Contracts may eontain both lease and non-lease components. The Group alocates the consideration in the cantract to the l¢ase and
non-lease components based on ther relative stand alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Group 15 a lessee, 1t
has elected not to separate 'ease and non-lease components and nstead accounts for these as a single fease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an ndividual basis and contan 3 wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impese any covenants other than the security interests i the ‘eased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as secunty for borrowing purpoes
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
i4. Leases {continved)

Asets and liabilRies arsing from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value

ofthe following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments), less any lease ncentives receivable,

- variable lease payment that are kased on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencemen; date,

- amounts expected 10 be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees,
theexercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain ta exercise that option, and

. payments of penaltie s for terminating the lease, if the lsase term reflects the Group exercising that cption,

Lea e payments to be mad e under reasonably certaln extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
Thelease payments are distounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
wouid have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with simiar terms, security and tonditions.

The Company does not hold any teases at 21 December 2022 (2021: none).

15. Investments

Company

Subisidiaries Jaint Total
Ventures

£°000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 January 2022 . 605,802 605,802
Additions 102,500 102,500
Impairment recognised during the year {10,331) - (10,381)
As at 31 December 2022 697,921 - 697,921

An investment mpairment has occurred due to the cessation of trade within an investment held by DLG Acquisitions Ltd. The relevant
Investment has been reduced to nil value due to a lack of future cashflows expected from this entity.

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Jo'nt ventures 792 962
Associates 2,944 1,862
3,686 2,824
Groyp ~joint venturas
2012 2021
£000 £'000
As at 1 January 862 -
Share of loss / {profit) retained by joint ventures (220) 802
Other adjustrments - 160
As at 31 December 732 962
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15. Invastments [continued)

The details of the joint ventures held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are sat out below. These are al' unlisted. Shares held by
an intermediate hold.ng company are indicated with an asterisk (*].

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

A Seat At The Table Limited England B Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
Company Stormdog Productions Limited England & Wales {1] *50.0% Television production
Earthshot Studios Limited England & Wales (1) *S0.0% Televisian praduction
FLCP (Agatha Raisin 3) Limited England & Wvales (1) *50.0% Television production
FLCP (Agatha Raisin 4) Limited England & Wales [1} *S0.0% Television production
The Holiday Productions Ltd England & Wales (1} *50.0% Television production
Studio Silverback Limited England & Wales (1} 50.0% Television product'on and distnbution
Ocean 25 Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television product'on
2::‘2:11"9‘ Lommunity Interest England & Wales (1) “50.0% Television product’'on
Studio Silverback Productions Limited England & wales (1) *50.0% Television product.on

2022 2021

£°000 £°000
At 1 january 1,862 2,246
Addition of associated undertakings 875 -
Profil retained for the year 314 374
Exchange adjustment a6 {57}
Dividends receved {153} {701)
As at 31 December 2,944 1,862
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15, Invastments (continued)

The details of the asscciate undertakings held by the Group as at 32 Pecember 2022 are set out below. These are all ualisted. Shares
held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*),

Country of Voting

Name of Company incarparation rights % Nature of business
Bullion Praductions Limited England & Wales (1} *24.99% Television production
Bullion Productions Netherlands B.V, Netherlands {11} *24.99% Television praduction
Caravan Media timited England & wales (9) *19.99% Television production
Great Scott Media Limited England & Wales (1) +20.0% Television praduction
Kura Productions Limited New Zealand {12) *51.0% Television production
Moon Stories Limited Engiand & Wales (1} *13.5% Tefevision production
Moon Stones [Australia) Pty Ltd Australia {15} *13.5% Television production
$7ories2 Limited England & Wales (1) "27.02% Television production
Satellite Media Limited New Zealand (12) *50.0% Television production
Seven Selections Limited England & Wales (1) *27.02% Television production
Seven Stories Limited Enpland & Wales (1) *27.02% Television preduction
Silvervan Praductions Limited England & Wales (14} *10.0% Television production
Story Films (Lizzie] Limited England & wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films Ltd England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films (Canoe Man) Limited England & Wales {1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films {Black Cabj Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films {Otto) Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films {The Hunted) Limited England & Wales [1) *32.43% Television production
3 Rock Productions Limited England & Wales [1) *12.5% Television production
Build Your Own Films Limited England & Wales [1) *49.0% Television production
Formation Games Studio Ltd England & Wales {18) “2.69% Game and £ntertainment Studio

a
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

The details of the subsidiaries held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out below. Al' companies are included i the
cansalidated financial statements and the fullinfermation will be annexed ta the company’s next annuat return. The Directors believe

that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting
Name of Company incarparation rights % Nature of business
141 Productions {Quch) Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
IORG Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television distribution
Adamaarku Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *80.01% Television production
Alchemy TV Distribution Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television praduction
Alexander Tailfeather Limited England & Wales {1} *50.0% Television production
All3Media Director 2 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Sub-holding company
Al3Media Director Limited England & Wales {1} 100% Sub-holding company
Ali3Media Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Holdings Uimited England & wales (1} 100% Sub-holding company
All3Media International Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television distribution
Allamedia Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Sub-holding company
All3ndedia Clip Sales Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
All3Media Rights Limited (Formerly England & wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Newco Productions Limited)
Al3Media USA Limited England & Wales {1} “100% Sub-holding company
American Animal Pictures Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
An Awfully Big Production Company England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Limited
Angela Black Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television producton
First Floor Films Limited (prev. Angelica England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Films Limited)
Annika Stranded Finance Lirmited England & wales (1) *100% Financing vehicle
Apprentice Witch Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *3100% Television production
Assembly Film & Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Te'evision production
Atrium TV Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Arctic Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Aurora Media Worldwide UK Limited tngland & wales (1) *90.0% Television praduction and distribution
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15. Investments {continued)

Subsidiary undertakings {continue,

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*)

Country of Voting
Name of Company incarporation rights % Nature of business
Awakening Production Limited England & Wales {1} *80.01% Telewision production
Back to Life 2 Productions Limited England & wales {1) *20.01% Television production
Bentley Productions Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television preduction
Betty TV Limited England & wales {1} *100% Television praduction and distribution
BLU Production Lid England & Wales{1) *100% Television production
Barn Free Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Brookside Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television praduction
Bunch Praductions Limited England B Wales{1) *100% Telewision production
C4j Distribution Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Telewision distribution
CA2 Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production
CA3 Productions Limited England & Wales{1} *100% Telewision production
CHA Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Champton TV Finance Ltd England B wales (1) *100% Television production
Company Films Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Television production
Company Pictures Limited England & wales (1) 100% Television production
Company Productions {Douglas) Limted England & wales (1) 100% Television production
Company Productions {North) Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Telewvisian production
Company Productions Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
ﬁ:‘;‘;"" Television (Northern reland} | ¢01arg & wales (1) 100% Television production
Coempany Television Limited England & wales (1) 100% Television production
CTM™ 3 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 4 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM § Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM B Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 7 Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Telewision production and distribution
CTM B Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 9 Productions Limited England & wales {1} *“100% Telewvision production and distribytion
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15. Investments [continued)

Subsidiary undartakings (continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are ind-cated with an asterisk {¥).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
CTM 10 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 11 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 12 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television preduction and distribution
CTM Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
DALG Produttions Limited England & Watles (1) *100% Television production
Dalg 2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Delta Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Digital Rights Group Limited England & Wales (1) 160% Television distribution
DirtQuake Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
DLG Financing 1 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
DLG Financing 2 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
Dream Horse Films Limited England & Wales (1} *60% Televislon production
DRG America Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Tetevision distributian
Drive Through Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Eight Bridges Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
Electric Talent Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Fear Falls Production Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production
First Loop Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Gently Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Grange Hill Productions Limited England B Wales (1} +50.0% Television production
Hit Networks Ltd England & Wales (1) *73.0% SVOUD and podcast distribution
1 0 Distribution Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Imposter Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) “100% Television praduction
Informer Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Invasion Pictures Ltd England & Wales {1} *a0% Television production
IRZ Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
La Plante Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Liar Two Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *80.01% Television production
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15.  Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings [contin:

Shares held by an intermediate hoiding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
Lime Entertainment Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures [Drama ASC} Limited €ngland & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures (HH) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures [Nursery) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television produttion
Lime Pictures Group Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
time Pictuses Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Lion Cubs Limited England & Wales [1} *100% Television production
Lior Cubs 2 Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Telewision praduction
Lion Drama Limited England & Wales {1} “100% Television production
Lion Films timited England & Wales (1} *100% Talevision production
Lion Media Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Lion Television Limited England & Wales [1) 100% Television production
Lion Television North Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Little Dot Studios Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Multi-platform content provider
Living Planet Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Manoar Production Services Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television production
Marlais Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *80.01% Television praduction
Maverick Op;eration Quch Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Maverick Television Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television praduction
Mears Studios {Holdings) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Mersey Acquisitions Limited England & Wales [1) 100% Television production
Mersey P L Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television production
Merton Books Limited England & Wales (1) *100.0% Television production
Midsomer Murders 521 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 522 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders $23 Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 524 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Moneda Productions Umited Engiand & Wales (I} 100% Television production
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15, Investments {continued)

Subsidiary undertakings [¢ontinued

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*),

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

MUD Productions Limited Engiand & Wates [1) *100% Television production

Neal Street Media Limiteq England & Wales [1) *50.1% Television production and distribution
:’:‘tzgee‘ Productions (Broadway) England & Wales [1) | ~100% Television production and distribution
Neal Street Productions Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production and distribution
New Pictures Limited England & wales (1) 100% Television production and distribution
Nine Streets Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production

North One Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production

NPX Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

NSM Empire Ltd England & Wales (1} *50.1% Television production

NSM The Red Zone Ltd Englangd & Wales (1) *50.1% Television praduction and distribution
Objective Media Group Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television Production

OF Productions {Buds) Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television Production

OF Productions [Gold) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television Production

OF Productions [Toast) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

OF Productions {Us) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television Production

One Potato Two Potato timited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distnbution
Optomen Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television production

Penguin Films Limited England & wWales (1) *100% Television production

Penny Dreadful Television Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Perfect Planet Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production

Pet Moon Productions Limited England B Wales (1} *100% Television production

Pet Maoon Televisian Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television production

Polar Baar Films Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production

Portman Acquisitions Limjted England & Wales (1} *100% Television distribution

Portman Entertainment Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Film and Television Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Media Assets Limited England & Wales {1) * 0% Television distribution
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15. invastments (continuad]

Subsidiary undertakings {continued

Shares beld by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Matura of business
Portman RMedia Assets (No. 2} Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Portman Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Rainforest Finance Limited England & Wales (1] *100% Financing vehicle
Ravenscourt Services Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Taievision production
Raw Factual Limited England B Wales (1) *S2% Televisian production
Raw Scripted Limited England & Wales (1) *60% Television production
Raw TV Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Raw 1990 Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Raw California Limited England & Wales {1) +100% Television production and distribution
Red Rooster Television Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Television production
Regquiem Productions Limited Engbnd & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Residualld Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Administrative vehicle
Ridley Productipns Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Rack Ridge Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Saigon Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Serengeti Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *89.993 Television production
Shakespeare Productions Limited £ngland & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Silverback Filims Limited €ngland & Wales (1} 100% Television production and distribiution
SBF Features Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
SBf Nat Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Sealion Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
Stateside Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% TelevEion production and distribution
Studio Lambert Associates Limited England & Wales {1} 100% Te'evision production and distribution
Studio Lambert Finance Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Media Limited England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production and distribution
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15. Investments {continued)

Subssidiary undertakings {continued]

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorgoration rights % Nature of business
g::;ieé;:;oc:u:i:?“nelj)mited (previously. England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production and distribution
The Feed Production Limited England & Wales (1} *lous 1elevision production
I‘ihn:‘L::e Pictures Holding Company England & Wales {1) e100% Television production
The Mersey Music Company Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
The Mersey Televisiocn Company Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
The Mersey Television Group Limited England 8 Wales (1) *50.0% Television praduction
Iil':i:\g:rsev Television Training Company England & Wales (1) -50.0% Television production
The Nest Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
The Yourist Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
This is Your Life Experience Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
TLS1 productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
TSP2 Praductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Two Brothers Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television preduction and distribution
Bancroft Gold Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production and distribution
Boat Story Prouctions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Televisian production and distsibution
Unstoppakble Fim and Television Limited England & Wales (1) *31% Television production
Van der Vatk 51 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Van der Valk 52 Limited England & wWales (1) *100% Television production
Van Der Valk §3 Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
werseworld Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Telavision production
West Road Pictures Limited England & wales {1} 100% Television production and distribution
Westhridge Productions Limited England & wWales {1) *100% Television production
Wild Britain Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Wild Chase Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
wild West Finance Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Wing Limited England & Wales {1} *51% Digital production services
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15. Investments (continued)
Subsidiary undertakings [centinued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Cempany incorporation rights % Nature of business
Wings Acquisition Company Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Sub-holding company
Witchery Pictures Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
2Zeal Entertainment Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television praduction
Zero Chill Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television preduction
The Tourist Australia Productions Pty Ltd Australa {7} *80.01% Television production
Ali3Media Deutschland GmbH Germany (3} *100% Television producticn
filmpool entertainment GmbH Germany {5) *93.5% Television production
filmpool fictian GmbH Germany (19} +93.5% Television production
filmpacl media entertaioment GmbH Austria {6} *93.5% Televisien production
| Care Producties BY Netherlands {11) *52.0% Television production
';L?g?f‘fisvﬁelgium B. tormerly DTV 1 g igium (17) *100% Television production
IDTV Cumulus BY Netheriands {11) *100% Television production
DTV Fitm and Videp Productions BV Netherlands {11} *100% Television production
1DTV Fusion BV Netherlands {11} *100% Television praduction
IDTV Live 360 BV Netherlands [11) *100% Television production
1DTV Media Group BY Netherlands [41) *100% Television production |
gn:;m, Myselt & Eye Entertainment Germany (4) *93.5% Television production
MME Movement AG Germany (3) *53.57% Television production
Red Forest Tv BV Netherlands [11) *100% Television production
South & Browse GmbH Germany {20) *100% Te evision production and distribution
Tower Productions GmbH Germany (4) *100.0% Television production
TFS - The Fiction Synd icate GmbH Germany (21} *50.1% Television production
Magic Connection GmbH Germany (S} *50.1% Television production
Tulip Holdings BV Netherlands (11} *100% Sub-holding company
Ali3Media Deutschland Fiction GmbH Germany (22) *100% Television production
POS Video & Television B.V. Netherlands {11) *100% Television production and distribution
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
15. Investments {continued)
Subsidiary undertakings (continued

Shares hald by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk {*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Mature of business
All3Metia America, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
AllJMedia International Ameriva, LLC UsA{2) +100% Television production and distribution
All3media USA, Inc. USA (2) *100% Sub-holding company
Beach Life Studios, LLC USsA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Beak 5Street Studio Rentals Inc. USA (2) *100% Television praduction and distribution
Bright Road Productions, inc. Usa2) *100% Television production and distribution
Bright Spot Content, LLC USA [2) *100% Television production and distribution
Carnaby Services, Inc. USA(2) “100% Television praoduction and distribution
Clock Productions, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
DLG USA Financing, LLC USA (2) 100% Sub-holding company
Dusty Rese Pictures, LLC USA(2) *100% Television preduction and distribution
DRG America LLC USA (8} *100% Television distribution
Island TV, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Lion Television, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Little Dot Studios, LLC USA (2} *100% Multi-platform content provider
Mavarick Television Inc. USA(2) *100% Television production and distribution
Music Lo Air, Inc. USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
Neal Street Productions USA, Inc. USA {16} *100% Television production and distribution
Neon Productions LLC USsA(2) *100% Television production and distribution
North One Television USA, Inc. USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
Chjective Productions US, Inc. USA(2) *100% Television production and distribution
Optomen Productions, LLC USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
One Potato, Two Potato LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Weddell Sea Pictures LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution




DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and fingncial statements for the year 10 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakin antinued

Shares held by an intermediate halding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
Palm Tree Pictures, LLC USA {(2) *100% Television production and distribution
Raw, lnc. USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Striped Zebra Productions, inc. USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Media, Inc USA (2) *80.1% Television production and distributian
Studio Lambert Associates USA, Inc. USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
The Heust, LIC USA (2) *100% Television production
The Write Types, inc. USA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Vector Productions LLC USA {2} *100% Multi-platform content provider
Woodman Park Productions, LLC USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
fl':xzdia International Asia Pacific Pte. | g oo nore (10) *100% Television distribution
Little Dot Studics [Asia} Pte. Lid Singapaore (10} 100% Multi-platform content provider
Burberry Entertainmeant Pty Limited Australia (13) \;100% Television preduction
erokenwood Productions Limited New Zealand [12) *100% Television production
Maggie Limited New Zealand (12) *100% Television production
Pam's Petting Zoo Limited New Zealand {12) *100% Television production
fiomuit;:aciﬁc Pictures Investments New Zealnd {12) *100% Sub-holding company
South Pacific Pictures Limited New Zealand [12) *100% Television production
Spu.lh Pacific Pictures Productions New Zealand {12) *100% Television production
Limited
Sauth Pac fic Pictures Serials Limited New Zealand {12} *100% Television production
Tatau Productions Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Television production
Weld Prodyctions Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Televisian production
Golden Retriever Family Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Television production
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

15.

Investments [continued)

Subsidiary undertakings {continued)

Registered Address Key
(1) ferkshwe House, 168 - 173 High Holborn, London, WCLV 7AA, United Kingdom
(2} 6060 Center Drive, 4th Floor, Los Angeles CA 90045, United States
(3} Ateierstrasse 12, 81671, Munich, Germany
(4} Gotzkowskystr,20-21, 10555, Berlin, Germany
(5} Kalscheurener Str_91, 50354 Hirth, Germany
(&} Untere Donaustr. 13-15, A - 1020, Wien, Austria
(7) 77 79 Argyle Street, Fritzroy, VIC 3065, Melborne, Austra'ia
{8) C/O GILDEA, 122 E. 42ND 5T 5T£ 4300, New York, USA
{9) Poynders End, Preston, Hitchin, England, 5G4 7RX
(1G) 80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
(11)  Qverschiestraat 176, 1062XK, Amsterdam, Netherlands
{12} & Tolich Place, Henderson, Auckland, New Zealand
{13])  Kew, Victoria 3101, Australia
{14 78 Mil' Lane, London. Unitied KGngon. NW6 112
{15)  Suite 275, 10 Albert Avenue, Broadbeach QLD 4218, Australia
{16) 50 Rockefeller Plaza, 4th Floor, New York, USA
(L7} Reedik 10, 1785 Merchtem, Belgium
{18) 63-66, Fifth Floor, Suite 23 Hatton Garden, London. England. ECIN BL
{19) Hohenzollernring 22-24, S0672 Koln, Germany
(20) Flofiergasse 2, 81369 Munchen, Germany
(21) Hildebokdplatz 15 17, 50672 Koln, Germany
(22) Alt-Moabit 62, 10555 Berlin, Germany

16. Inventories

Groug

Work in progress

No inventories are held by the Parent Company {2021: £nil)

2022 2021

£°000 £'000
267,402 175,774
267,402 175,774
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)

17. Trade and other receivables: due within one year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Trade receivabes 92,347 66,127 - -

QOther recevables 108,562 89503 4,397
Prepayments and accruad income 158,742 134 460 - 21
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 65,276 395,498
Soc il security and other taxes 1,825 - 126 26
361,476 290,090 68,799 395,545

Amounts owed by Group undertakings ncluded in the Company abave comprse a number of intercompany loans of £65,276,000
{2021~ £35,443,000) and an intercompany bban was repaid in June 2022 of Eni* (2021: £360,055,000), all of which are unsecured,

nterest-free and repayable on demand,

within other receivables in Group above s £1,069,000 (2021: £n) relat ng to dervatwe financal instruments. Wah.n other

receivables in the Company above is £4,339,000 {2021: £nil) relating to derivative financatinstruments

18. Trade and other receivables: due after more than one year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'o00 £'000 E000 £'000

Trade receivables - - - .
Prepayments and accrued income 1,873 784 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 26,360 35,545
Other receivables 234 1,165 234 1,165
2,107 1,949 26,594 37,110

Amounts owed by Group undertakings included in the Company above compnse an intercompany loan of £26,360,000 {2021
£35,945,000) repayable between May 2025 and May 2026 foHowing the settlement of all outstanding loan amounts due under the
Semar Facilimes Agreement and the Second Lien Faclibies Agreement with National Westminster Bank Flc and Liberty Globa)
Incorporated Limited dated 24 May 2019 and 31 May 2019 respectively. Interest is payable on these loans at a rate of between

EURIBOR + 3 5% and SONiA + B.00% per annum,

Other recervables wn Group and Cormpany abave 1s £234,000 (2021: £1,165,000) relating to derivative financial instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

19. Berrowings

Unsecured borrowing at amartised cost
Amounts owed to parent undertakings

Securad borrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans
Deferred financing fees

Total Borrowings

Armounts due for settlement:

Within £2 months or on demand
Currant borrowings total

In mare than one year byt not more than two years

in more than two years but not more than five
years

In mare than five years

Nen-current barrawings total

Total Borrowings

Company
Analysis of borrowings by currency:

31 December 2022

Amounts owed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

Deferred financing fees

31 Decamber 2021

Amounts awed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

Deferred financing fees

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 021
£'000 £°000 £'000 £°000
292,980 221,874 292,980 221.874
292,960 221,874 292,980 221,874
851,779 491,374 465,060 446,636
{4,121) {5,328) {a,121) {5.328)
547,658 486,046 460,939 441,308
840,638 707,920 753,919 663,182
93,530 71,562 31,293 31,293
93,530 71,962 31,293 31,293
11,252 2,863 {1,206) {1,206}
368,816 337,221 356,852 337,221
366,980 295,874 356,980 295,874
747,048 635,958 722,626 631,889
£40,638 707,920 753,919 663,182
Sterling Euros Total
£000 £'000 £°000

292,930 - 292,980

106,499 358,561 465,060

(4,121) - (4,121)

395,358 358,561 753,919

221,874 - 121,874

106,500 340.136 445,636

[5,328) {5,328}

323,046 340,136 563,182
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

19. Borrowings (continued)

Group
Al of borrowi rren
Sterling US Dollars Euros NZ Dollars  AUS Dolars Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
31 December 2022
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 292 980 - - - - 292 980
Bank toans 190,740 - 358,561 2478 - 551,779
Deferred financng fees (4,121) - - {4,121}
479,599 - 358,561 2,478 - 840,638
31 December 2021
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 221,874 . B 221,874
Bank loans 139,546 2,166 340,136 9,526 491,374
Deferred financing fees {5.328) - - (5,328)
356,092 2,166 340,136 9,526 707,820
The principal features of the Group and Company’s borrowings are as follows:
{n Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. The average eflective interest rate on bank overdrafts approximates 3.50%

above the Bank of Englang base rate per anoum, mimmum 0%,

(n} The Group has four principal bank loans:

(a)

(b)

13}
{d)

a first lien loan of €405m The lvan was taken out on 4 June 2019, The loan 1s secured by pledge over the company’s
shares and intercompany receivables, the carrying amount of which 5 shown in nete 18 The loan Carrigs an interest
rate at 3.5% above 6 month EURIBOR, minimum Q%.

a loan of £74am . The lpan was taken out on 4 June 2019 The loan is secured by pledge over the Company’s shares
and intercompany rece vables, the carrying amount of which is showa in note 19. The loan carries an interest rate at
£.00% ahove 6-month SONIA, mnimym 0%,

production lgans total ing £51.8m (2021: £31.1m).

aloan for £11.5mis repayahle no later than 31 December 2023 at an mterest rate of 3.35% above the Bank of
England Base Rate. The production toan is secured against the assets of the specific production.

{Ih] Amounts repaysb'e to parent undertakings carry interest of 5.99% per annum charged on the outstanding loan balances
Shareholder 10ans at 31 December 2022 total'ed £292,980,000 comprised of £275,874,000 principal and £16,106,000
accrued interest (2021.£209,454,000 principaand £12,420,000 interest). mterest is compounded annually.

The weighted average interest rates paid during the year were as follows.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

% %

Bank overdrafts 6.92 375
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 5.99 5.99
Bank loans 6.99 4.23
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

20. Deferred tax

The following are the major defarred tax habd4ies and atsets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current

and priar reporting year

At Cradit / At

1 January Acquisitions {charge} to Exchange 31 December

1022 / disposals profit or loss ditferences 2022

£000 £000 £000 £C00 £'000

Intangible assets {2,582) (148} 610 49 (3,071)

‘Accelerated tax deprecration 4,421 185 (873) 73 3,807

IFRS 16 leases 535 {13) 27 33 582

Tax ldsses 8152 - 705 57 8,914

Revalyation of financial instruments 2,035 . {4.865) - (2.830)

Short term temporary differencas 453 {25} {2,658} 198 (2,032)

Deferred tax asset 12,014 - {7,054) 410 5,370
Deferr ed tax asset n the Company relates ta the following

At At

1January Acquisitions Charge to Exchange 31 December

2022 / dispasals profit or loss differences 2022

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Hevaluation of financal instruments 2,035 - (4,865} - (2,830

2,038 - (4,865} - {2,830)

Deferrad tax assets and 'iab | ties are offset where the Group has a legally anforceable right to da se. The lollowing is the analysis of
the deferred tax ba ances {after offset) for financial reporting purpases:

Deferred tax fiabilities {note 24}
Deferred tax assets

2022 2021
£7000 £'000
(11,312) (4,431)
16,682 16,445

5,370 12,014

Deductible temparary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attibutable to

the following:

Unutilised tax losses

2022 2021
£'000 £000
23,267 20,720
23,267 20,720
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21. Trade and other payables: due after more than one year

Group Lompany
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Accruals and deferred income 3,462 2,691 . -
Other payables 59,237 33815 17,946 6,231
62,699 36.506 17,946 6,231

included within other payables in Group above is £42 409,000 (2021: £27,702,000) related ta put and call options and £16,829,000
{2021. £6,111,000) related to deferred consideration

Included within other payables in the Company above is £1,117,000 (2021: £120,000) related to put and call option liabilities and
£16,829 000 {2021 £6,111 000) related to deferred consderation.

22. Tradae and other paysbles: due within cne year

Group Company

2012 2021 2022 2021
£'000 E£°000 £'000 E'Q00

Trade payables 107,976 85.9313 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 35,934 337,615
Other payables 35,945 78 875 7,146 49,922

Socral secur'ty and other taxes 5,229 5541 - -
Accruak and deferred mcome 387,562 314,396 2,048 2,702
Bank overdrafts - - 96,472 68,492
236,712 434,735 141,600 458,731

Inc Mded within other payables in Group and Company above b £nd (2021 £8,112 000} relat ng to derivative financial instruments.
ncaded within other payables in Group above is £8,115,000 12021: £41,370,000) relating to put and call opticn liabilities and
£1,666,000 {2021 £13 832,000} related to deferred consideration. Included in other payables in the Company  £3,000,000 (2021:
£21,570,000) relat ng to put and call option liabilites and £780,000 {2021: £13 409,000) related 1o deferred consideration,

Amounts owed ta Group undertakings of £35,%34,000 (2021: £337,615,000) are repayable within a year.

23. Obligations under keases and hire purchase contract

Totatfuture commtments under non-cancellable operating leases, for the Group, are as follows:

Land and buildings QOther

2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £°060

Oparating eases payable:
Within pne year 135 20 303 248
In two to five years - - - -
In over five years - - -
135 30 303 248

There are no obligations under operating leases i the Company as at 31 December 2022 or 31 December 2021.
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Notes ta the financial statements (continued)

24. Provisions far {iabilities

Deferred taxation {note 20)
Dilapidation provis gns
Other provisions

There are no provisions for liabilities in the Company as at 31 December 2022 or 31 December 2021,

25. Called-up shara capital
Group and Company

i sued and fully pavg:

119,240 {31 December 2021: 119,240} ordinary A shares of £0 01 each
119,240 {31 December 2021.119.240) ordmary B shares of £0.01 each
16,802 (31 December 2021: 16,802] ordinary shares of £0.01 each

20212 2021
£'000 £'000
11,312 4,431
1,044 842
. 588
12,356 5,861
2022 2021

£ E
1182 1,192
1,152 1,192
168 168
2,552 2,552




DLG Aequisitions Limited
Report and financlal statements far the year to 31 December 2022

Notes ta the financial statements (continued)

26. Reconcitiation of movements in reserves

Company
Calied-up Share {Accumulated Total
share capital premium losses) / equity
£'000 account retained E£'000
£000 earnings
£000
At 1 January 2021 E) 218,478 1152,813) 65,668
Comprehensive (lass}/income:
«Profit far the financia! year - - 203 203
Total comprekensive loss . - 203 203
Share premium reduction® - {218,477) 218,477 -
Transactions wih pwners:
- Onvidends to shareholders - {12,719} (12,719)
Total transachions with owners (12,719) 12,719)
At 31 December 2021 3 1 53,148 53,152
At 1 January 2022 3 1 53,248 £3,152
Comprehensive income;
-Profit for the financial year - - 7,005 7,005
-Other reserves movement - - 2,500 2,50
Tota!l comprehensive income - - 9,505 9,505
3 1 62,653 62,657
Tronsactions with owners:
- Dividends to shareholders - - - -
Total transatuons with awners v M " N
At 31 December 2022 3 1 52,653 §2,657
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Report ang financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

26. Reconciliation of movemants in reserves {continued)

Group
Total equity
Called-up Share attributable Nan-
share premium  Accumulated to owners of  controlling Total
capital account losses the Company interest equity
£'000 £'000 £000 E'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,478 (313,811) {95,330) 2,216 {93,114)
Comprehensive floss)/income:
- {Lass)/Profit for the financial year - - (18,419} {18,419) 175 {18,244)
Other comprehensive income/floss).
- Currency translat ‘on differences B - 2,437 2,437 {157) 2,280
Tatal comprehensive (loss)/incame - - {15,982} {15,982} 18 {15,964)
Share premium reduction® - {218,477) 218,477 - - -
Transoctions with owners.
Divdends to shareholders - (12,719) {12,719) - {12,719)
- Dividends to subsidiaries’ non-controlling - - {9.389) {9,389} - (9,389)
interests e
Total transactions with owners - - {22,108) {22,108) - (22,108)
At 31 December 2021 3 1 {133,424} [133,420) 2,234 {131,186)
At 1 lanuary 2022 3 1 {133,424) {133,420} 2,234 (131,186}
Comprehensive (loss)fincome
-{Lass)/profit for the financial year - - (39,172) {39,172) 20 {39,152}
Other comprehensive income/{loss}:
- Currency translation differences - - {1,116) {1,118) 86 {1,030)
Tota® comprehensive {Inss)/income - . {40,288) (40,288} 106 {40,182)
Share premium reduction - . . . . .
Transoctions with owners:
- Dwidends to shareho'ders . . - - . -
- Dividends to subs'diaries’ non-cantrolling - - {9.459) (9.459) {9,459)
interests
Totat transactions w th owners . - {9,459) (9,459} - {9,459)
At 31 December 2022 3 1 (183,171) {183,167) 21,340 {180,827)
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27. Notes to the cash flow statement

rou
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £000
Loss for the year [39,152) (18,244)
Adstments for:
Share of lois of associates 88 218
Share of loss of Jo nt ventures 220 (802)
Finance incame (15,088) {21,933)
Finance costs 84,978 65,015
lncome tax charge/ (credit) 9,425 1,299
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5,295 5,187
Depreciation of right of use assets 10,247 10,542
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,394 9,944
Lo s on disposal of property, plant and equipment (74) {5}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 62,333 51,222
{Increasel/decrease ininventaries (s0,389) 13,964
{increase)/decrease in receivables (64,248) {40,008)
nerease in payables 117,127 43,294
Cash generated from operations 64,323 68,472
Company
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Profit for the year 7,005 203
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 25,605 19.3599
Income tax charge ) 4,866 2,243
Dividends received {61,689) (81,533)
Impawment of non current assets 10,381 3,104
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {13,832) {16,584)
{Increase}/Decrea se n rege vahles [138) 76
{ncrease 1n payables 595 10,928
Cash used in operations [13,375) [5,580)
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27. Notes to the cash flow statement {continued)

Lash and cash eguivalents

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £°000 £'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 82,793 184,638 140,804
Bank overdrafis (included within payables) . - (96,a72) {68,492}
Net cash and cash equivalents 81,641 B2,793 88,166 72,312

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash and short-term bank deposits with an orginal matunty of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the reporting year as shown in the statement of cash f'ows can be reconcfled to the related items n the

balan¢e sheet position as shown abave,

Included in cash and cash equivalents s £35,955,338 (2021: £34,869,946) held In designated segregated production bank accounts
far televis on companies that have commiss-oned programmes on their behalf. These funds are under the effecuive management
and contral of the Group under the terms of the contracts with the television comparies.

Analysis of changes 1n pet debt
At Other At
1 January Exchange non-cash 31 December
2022 Cash flow movements movements 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Group
Cash and cash equivalents 82,7193 {3.075) 1,923 81641
Loans from refated parties (221,874) {55.000) {16,106) {292,980}
Bank loans due within 1 year {73,168) {20.785) (976) - {94,929)
Bank loans due In more than 1 year (418B,206) (20,581} (18,425} . (457,212)
Delerred financing fees within 1 year 1,206 - - 1,206
Deferred financing fees in more than 1year 4,121 - (1,206} 2,915
Net debt {625,128) (99,441) (17,478) {17,312) [759,359)
Company
Cash and cash equwalents 72312 15,856 i2) 88,166
Loans from related parties {221.874; {55.000} - (16,108} {292,980}
Bank loans due within 1 year (32,500} - {32,500}
Bank loans due in more than 1 year {414,1386¢ (L8,425) {432,561}
Deferred financng fees within 1 year 1.206 - 1,206
Deferred finanting fees in more than 1year 4.121 - (1,208) 2,915
Net debt {590,871) {39,144) (18,427) (17,312) [665,754)
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28. Contingent liabilities
Loss absorption agreement

DLG Acquistions and AllI3Media Deutschland GmbH, a 100% subsidiary of DLG Acquisitians Limited, have a vo untary loss

absorption agreement in place such that any losses thal arise in All3Media Deutschland GmbH are assumed by DLG Acquisiions
Limited. This agreement was in place for the years to 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016, 31 Decemnber 2017, 31 December
2018, 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 Decernber 2022.

29. Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category - Group

Assets as per balance sheet

Assets at fair

Loans and value through  Derivatives used
receivables profit and loss for hedging Total
£'000 £000 E000 £'000
As at 31 December 2022
Trade and other receivables 351,933 . - 351,933
{excluding prepayments)
Derivative financial instruments 1,302 1,302
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 - - 81,641
Tota) 433,574 1,302 434,876
As ot 31 December 2021
Trade and other receivables 263,929 263,929
{excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash eauivalents 82,793 82,793
Total 346,722 - - 346,722
Liabilities as per balance shaet
Liabilities at
fair value Derivatives Financial
through profit used for liabilities at
and loss hedging amortised cost Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
As at 31 December 2022
Borrowings (exclud ng finance lease habilities) . - (840,638) {840,638)
Lease liabihties : (49,914} (49,914)
Der wat ve fnancial instruments - . - .
Trade and other payables {excluding non financiai liabilities) - (599,328) {599,328)
Tatal - - (1,489,880} {1,489,880)
As ot 31 December 2021
Borrowngs {excluding fnance lease rabihities) {707,920} {707 520)
Lease liablities - {53,106) (53.106}
Der vatve fnancial instruments (6,947} - {6,947}
Trade and other payables {excluding nen financial abil ties) - - {513.139) {513,139)
Total ‘ {6,947) - {1,274,165) {1,281,112)
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29. Financial instruments {continued)
Financial ingtr n = n

Assets as per balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other recevables
exCHIdINg prapayments)
Derwvative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

As at 31 December 2021
Trade and other recevables
{excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheat

As ot 31 December 2022

Borrowings (excluding finance lease habilities)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and cther payables (excluding non-financial fiabilities)

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Borrowings (excluding finance lease | .ab:lties)
Derivative hnancial instruments

Trade and other payables (excluding non-financia’ liabilities}

Total

Assets at fair Dearivativas
Loans and  value through used for
receivablas profit and loss hedging Total
£000 E£000 £000 £'000
91,3 91,821
4,572 4,572
184,638 184,638
276,459 4,572 . 281,031
431,469 431,469
140,304 : 140,804
573,273 - . 572,273
Liabilities at
fair value Derivatives Financial
through profit used for liabilities at
and loss hedging amortised cost Total
£000 £'000 £000 £°000
- (850,391) (850.391)
163,073} {63,073}
- - {913,464) {913,464)
- - (731,674) {731,674)
(6,947) {6.947)
- - {388,356} (388,356)
(6,947) . (L,120,030) {1,126,977)
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29. Financial instrumants {continued)
Einancial instrumeats by maturity

The maturity of contracted cashflows associated with the Group's financial Instruments are shown in the tables below The tables
have been drawn up based on disceunted contractual cashflows, showing the Group's assets and labslities as stated in the balance

sheet,

Group

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Borrowings {excludng finance leases)

Lease Liabilities [IFRS 16)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financialb liabilities)

Tatal

As ot 31 Decernber 2021

Trade and other recevables (excluding prepayments)
Barrowings (excluding finance leases)

Lease Liabilities {IFRS 16)

Derivatwe financialinstruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financial Kabilities)

Total

Lompany

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments}
Borrowings {exclud ng finance leases)

Der wvatve financial instruments

Trade and other payables excluding non finangia) habel ties

Total

As gt 31 December 2021

Trade and other rece vables (exc'uding prepayments)
Borrowings [excluding finance leases}

Derivative financal instruments

Trade and ather payables exclud-ng non financalliabihities

Total

Later than one

year and nat
Not tater than  iater than five Later than five

one year years years Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
338,510 13,423 - 351,933
{90.675) {382,983} (366,980) {840,638)
{10,043) {29,636} {10,235) {49,914)
234 1,068 - 1,302
|514,609) (82,189} (2,529) (599,327)
(276,583) {480,317) {379,744] [1,136,644)
235,753 27,676 499 263,928
{71,962) {340,085} (295,874) {7072,921)
(10,335) (31,862) {10,309} [53,106)
- (6,947} - (6,947)
{436,355) (76329} {454} {513.138)
{282,899) {427,547} {306,738) {1,017,184)
65,462 26,359 - 91,821
(31,294) {355 5461 463 451) {850,291}
- 4,572 - 4,572
(45,127) {16,529) {1,417) {63.073)
(10,959) {341,244) {464,868) (817,071)
80,779 340,890 . 431,469
{31,293) [336,015) (364,366} (731,674)
- (6,947) - (6,947)
(179,935) {208,422) N {388,357)
{120,449) (210,693} {364,366) {695,509)

The ga n recognsed in the year on des vat we financial snstruments is d sclosed in note 8 {2021 loss in note 9). Interest paid on
Borrowmngs 15 disclosed in note 9 with further detaiss disclosed n note 19.

As at 31 December 2022 the Group held a provision against recoverability of trade recewables of £6,685,000 (2021 £2,425,000). A
review performed on the Group's financial assets con¢ luded that no adjustment in respect of recoverability was required Asa
resu't, the expected loss adjustment at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is n'L with no charge recognised in the years

then ended .-
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30. Financial Risk Management

Fareigh Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to fareign currency risk through its overseas operations, borrowng and through overseas trading. A cross
currency swap has been entered into in order to swap sterling debt nto US dollar debt, to be serviced by the Group’s earnings in

this currency, as detailed in note 31.

Exposure
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, exclud ng derivative financial instruments, is as follows:
UsD EUR NZID
Groug £°000 £000 £:000
As at 31 Decamber 2022
Trade receivables 22,319 14,193 778
Cash and cash equivalents 49,642 {21,506} 3,679
Trade payables (12,380} {3,356} {52)
Bank loans {3,560) {358,561} -
As at 31 December 2021
Trade receivables 23,809 8,639 .
Cash and cash equivalents 9,963 14,389 5673
Trade payables (7.050) (2,249} {79}
Bank boans (2,166) [340,136) -

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the Group’s profit and loss and equity, excluding translational risks and effects on derivative financial instruments,
are disclosed in the table below. Derivative financial instruments are excluded as the Group does not apply hedge accounting.

Details regarding the Group's derivative financial instruments are given in note 31,

Increase/{decrease) in Profit & Loss and increase/{decrease) in equity

USD/GBP exchange rate: increase 5%
USD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%
EUR/GBP exchange rate: increase 5%
EUR/GRP exchange rate: decrease 5%
NZD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%
N2D/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%

31 December

2022
£000

{2,285}
2,339
18,404
{19,324}
{175}
184

31 December
2021
E'000

(299}
314
16,136
{16,542)

=]



DLG Acquisitions Lmited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

30. Financial risk management {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has interest bearing assets and liabiltties, including cash and debt commuitments. The Group holds iterest rate swaps,

the details of which are disclosed in note 31.

Exposure
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk at the balance sheet date, excluding derrvative f nancial instruments, 15 as follows:

Balance Interest Rate

Group E'000 %
As at 31 Oecember 2022

Bank overdrafts - 6.93
Amgunts owed to parent undertakin gs 192,980 599
8ank loans 551,140 6.99

As 3t 31 December 2021

Bank overdrafts - 375
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 221,874 595
Bank loans 491,374 4.33
Sensitivity

The sensitivity aof the Groug’s prefit and loss and equity ta mavements in interest rate arisgs mainly a3 a result of its barrowings,
The effect of a 1% mavement in the underlying exchange rates on the Group’s loss before tax are given in the table below. All

fgures exclude the effects on derivative financial instruments as the Group does not apply hedge accounting. Details regarding the
Group’s derivative financial instruments are given in note 31

Increasaf{decrease) in Profit & Loss and increase/(decrease) in equity

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

€'000 E'000

Bark of England base interest rate: increase by 1 percentage point {155) -
Bank of England base interest rate: decrease by 1 percentage paint 155 -
GEP SONIA: increase by 1 percentage point (1,303) {1,085)
GEP SONIA: decrease by 1 percentage point 1,303 505
6 manth EURIBOR: increase by 1 percentage point 13,586) {1,510}
6-month EURIBOR: decrease by 1 percentage polnt 3,586 -
Sharehalder foan interest rate; increase by L percentage point (2,930} {2,996}
Shareholder loan interest rate; decrease by 1 percentage point 2,930 442

T0
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31. Derivative financial instruments

Group

As at 31 December 2022

Liabilites cigssified as heid for trading (*)
Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Basis Rate swaps

FX derivatives

Total

As at 31 Cecember 2021

Liabilities clossified os held for trading (*)
Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Basis Rate swaps

Total

Non-current

Lurrent

portion portion Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
4,648 2,544 7.192
{309) (2,310} {2,619)

{3.270) - (3,270)
1,069 234 1,303

(2,208) {2,072 (4,280)

{5,904} 3,237 {2,667)

{8,112) 1,165 (6,947)

*) These der vative financial instruments are not designated as hedges and so are required to be classified as held-for-trading.

The full fair value of a derivative financial instrument is classified as a non-current asset or hability if the remaining maturity of the
tem s mare than 12 months and, as a current asset or jability, if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. The

dervative financial instruments are not traded in an active market. but the fair values are based or quoted market prices,
kroker/dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the IFRS 13 classification herarchy level 2,

loterest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 (2021
£204,175527), made up of £74,000,000 and €155,000,000 (2021 of £74,000,000 and €155 ,000,000) and have maturity dates in

2024 (2021:2024).

At 31 December 2022, the fixed interest rates vary from D.46% to 2.94% (2021: 0.46% to 2.94%]}, and the main floatng rates are
EURIBOR and SON A. Ga'ns and losses are recognised as fair value through profit or loss.

Cross currency rate swap

The Group holds four cross currency rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022, aliof which mature in 2024 (2021: 2024). All four
cantracts have original currency USD, with totalvalue of $278,519,000 (2021: $278,519,000) and swapped currency ELR. The total
notional fxed rate princ'pal amount, 31 31 December 2022 was $278,515,000 (2021- $278,519,000) and the total notional floating
rate principalamount at 31 Decernber 2022 was €250,000,000 {2021 : £250,000,000)- This is a f-oating for fixed swap, with a fixed
intesest rate of 5.71% (2021: 6.71%) and Floating rates based on 3 5% (2021 3.5%) above the 6 menth EURIBOR {maimum 0%).

i
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31. Derivative financia! instruments (continued)

Company

As at 31 Decernber 2022
Liabdtesclossified as held Jor trading (%)
Intere st rate swaps

Crosscurrency swaps

BasisRate swaps

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Ligbiities chass Jied os held for trading (%)
Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Bastk Rate swaps

Total

Current Non-current
portion partion Total
£000 £'000 £'000
4,648 2,544 7,192
(309) {2,310) {2,619)
4,339 234 4,573
12,208) {2,072) (4,280}
{5.504) 3,237 (2,667)
(8,112) 1,16% (6,947}

{*} These der kative financial instruments are not designat ed ashedges and so are required to be classified as held fortrading

The full far value of a dervative F.nanc 3l instrument s class f ed as a nen current asset or habiity if the remaining maturity of the
term 15 maore than 12 monthsand, as 2 current asset or kabdity, if the maturity of the hedged fem is less than 12 moaths. The

denvative financalinstruments are not traded 10 an active market, but the far values are based on quoted market prees,
broker/dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levek cf price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the IFRS 13 classification hierarchy level 2

Interest rate swaps

The noticna ' principal ameunts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 (2021
£204,175 527), made up of £74,000,000 and €155 .000 000 {2021: of £74,000,000 and €155,000,000) and have matunty dates in

20624 (2021:2024}.

At 31 December 2022, the fixed interest rates vary from 0 46%to 2 94%(2021:0 46% to 2.94%), and the main floating rates are
EURIBOR and SON# Gams and losses are recognsed as faw value thraugh profit or loss,

Cross cusrency rate swap

The Group holds four cross currency rate swap contsacts at 31 December 2022, all of which mature n 2024 {2021 2024) All faur
contracts have originalcurrency USD, with totalva'ue of $278,519,000 (2021: $278,519,000} and swapped currency EUR. The tota!
nat onal fwed rate principal amount a1 31 Decernber 2022 was $278,519,000 (2021: $278,519,000) and the total not onal floating
rate principalamount at 31 December 2022 was €250,000,000 {2021 : €£250,000,000). This is a fioating for fixed swap, with a fixed
terest rate of 5.71% (2023-6.715%) and floating rates based on 3.5% {2021: 3.5%) above the & month EUR.BOR [minimum 0%).

22. Dividends

Dividends paid. £n°{2021: £49 84) per £0 01 share

2022 1021
£°000 £000
- 12,719

- i2.719
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33, Related party transactions

Balances and tramsact ons between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been ehminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Tramsactions between the Group and its associates are disciosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of tha Gioup:

TOu)

Warner Bros. Discavery. 12t and subs'diaries
Liberty Global pic and sub sidianies

Seven Stones Limated

Caravan Media Limited

Story Films Ltd and subsidianes

Great Scatt Media Limited

Studio Lambert Med 1w Limited

Studio Silverback L-mited and subsid aries

3 Rock Productions Limited

Build Your Own Films Ltd

Company

Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. and subsidiaries
Liberty Giabal pic. and subsidiaries

Sale of goods

Purchase of goods and sarvices

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
118,490 97,903 1,500 1,500
275 316 1,500 1,500
Errd 344 22 -
s - - -

10 230 -
1,070 624 - -
- 1,198 - a2
448 607 2 78
B3 - - -
120,758 101,222 3,054 3,120
Sale of goods Purchase of goods and services
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
£D00 E'000 £'000 £°000
- - 1,500 1,500
- - 1,500 1,500
- . 3,000 3,000
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33, Related party transactions [continued)

The foflowing amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date

Group Amaunts owed by refated Amounts owed to ralated
parties parties
31 Dacember 31 December 31 December 31 Dacamber
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £900 £000
Warner Bros . Discovery, Inc. and subsidiaries 5,916 6,557 148,198 114,125
Likerty G ‘obal plc and subsidiaries 71 151 222,290 188,537
Seven Stones Limited 1,325 2,781 - -
Caravan Madia Limited 365 476 - -
Story Films Lid and subsidiaries 615 1,265 140 243
Great Scott Media Limited 1,067 819 -
Studio Lambert Media Limited and subsid-aries - 1,125 - -
Studio Silverback Limited and subsidiaries 56 252 - .
Bution Praductions Limited 25 3 - %5
3 Rock Productions Limited 336 - - -

Buyild Your Own Films Ltd - - -

9,776 13,426 170,628 303,001

Company Amounts owed by refated Amounts owed to related
parties parties

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021

£004 £'000 E'000 £000

Warner Bros. Discovery, inc.and subsidiaries - - 147,990 114,112

Liberty Global plc and subsidiaries - - 222,290 188,537

- 370,280 302.64%9

Since the acquisition on 23 September 2014 of All3Media Holdings Limited by DLG Acquisitions Limited there have been sales of
television programmes and payments of royalties to subsidiaries of Liberly Global plc and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc.la addition,
subsidiaries of Likerty Global plc and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. charge a teta: management fee of £3m per annum to DLG
AcquisXions Limited,

Amounts repayable to Discovery Inc. and Liberty Global ple carry interest of 5.99% (2021 S 99%) per annum charged on the
outstand ing loan balances.

Other Related Parties

DLG Acquisitions Limited owns 19.99% of Caravan Media Limited, 27 .02 % of Seven Stories Limited, 32.5% of Story Fims Ltd, 24.99%
of Bullion Productions Limited, 20% of Great Scott Media Lim#ted, 49.0% of Buld Your Own Filrns Ltd and 12.5% of 3 Rock
Productions Limited.

Entities that are part of the Graup have taken advantage of the exempt o frorm FRS101 and do not need to disclose transactions
within the Group where 100% of the subsidiary's voting rights are contreied within the Group. The amaunts outstanding are
unsecured and will be settled in cash. Na guarantees have been given or received. Mo provisions have been made for doubtful
debts in respect of the amounts cwed by related part'es.

Amounts owed by Caravan Media Limited carry interest at a rate of 5%+ 3 month SONIA. Amounts owed by Seven Stories Limited
carry interest fixed at 1.76%. Amounts owed by Story Fims Ltd and Bullion Productions Limited carry interest at rates of L5%+ BOE
base rate, Amounts owed by Great Scott Med:a Limited carry interast at rates of 2.0%+ BGE base rate
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34, Corporate acquisitions

(" On 2 December 2022, the Group acquired 100% of Pos Video & Television BV The follow:ng table sets out the bock values of the
identifiable net assets acquired together with the provisional fair value to the Group

Fair value .

Book value adjustment Fair value
£°000 000 £'000
Intangible fixed assets - 2,656 4 2,656
Deferred Tan halnlily un nlang ble -
Property, p'ant and equipment . - -

Right of use assets . .
Current assets 45 . 45
Cash 45 - 45
Current liabilties 190) - {90}
Nan-current Iabilities - .
Net habilities acquired - 2,656 2,656
Goodw Il recognised -
2,656

Diicharged by-

Co nsideraton paid - cash 1,770
Deferred consideration — payable within 1 year 836

Adjustments-
{a} Wentified intangible assets representing forecast income on the distributian of the POSV catalogue acquired.

The Group acquired Pos Video & Television B.V. as part of the Growp's strategy 1o grow its television production business. The
ntang ble asset recogmsed represents synerg £s and future cashflows expected to be ganerated from the production of the
acquired formats.

NB: Since January 2021, the acquired company has been inactve due to the production by IDTV of the formats and assoeciated
roya 'ty agreement The sole source of income since 2021 was the royalty income derived from the productions of POSV formats by
10TV,

As & component cf the acgqulsition, a'l royalty entitlements for 2022 productions have been reversed and included in the
determination of the purchase price of the company.

Pos Video & Television BV “s revenue for the full financial year 2022 was £nil. Revenue for the one month of ownership in the
periad was also Enil, Pos Video & te‘evision B.V. made no grofit or loss for the full financal year 2022. If Pos video & television B.V.
had been acquired on 1 january 2022, the Graup's profit or loss would not change for the financial year 2022.

Gross contractual amounts of current assets receivab'es as at acquisition date are £39,260 wh ¢h are expected to be collected.
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34. Corporate acguisitions (continued)

(#) On 1 September 2022, the Group executed the convertable loan note at Studio Lambert Media Limited. The conversion of the
ban notes resulted in the issue of 50,000 ardinary C shares of £0.001 each and 2,428 otdinary D shares of £0.001 each ta the Group.
The Group now owns$ 50.1% of voting rights and 24.99% of economic rights of Stud o Lambert Med a Limited and &$ subsidiaries.

Fair vaiue
Book value adjust Fair value
4,
£000 000 £000
inventories 37,074 B 37,074
Current assets 304 - 304
Cash 4,803 - 4,803
Net current habikties excl. cash {44,913} - {44,913)
Net babilitres acquired {2,732} - {2,732)
Goodwill recognised 2,839
107
Discharged by:
Conversion of foan note to equity 197
Adjustments:
Between 1 lanuary 2022 to 31 August 2022 Studo Lambert Media Limited, and its subsidiaries, were acc d for as an Associate.

The group assessed the fair va‘ue of S5tud o Lambert Media at the acquisition date and dentified no further adjustments.

The Group stepped up its investrment in Studio Lambert Media Limited as part of the Group’s strategy to grow its television
production business.

Studio Lambert Media Limited, and its subsidiaries, revenue for the full inancial year 2022 was £47,122,000. Revenue for the three
months of ownersh p in the penod was £37,199 000

Studio Lambert Media Limited, ang its subsd ares, made a profit of £2,470,000 for the full financial year 2022. However, profit for
the three months of ownership was £4 030,000,

|f Studio Lambert Media Limited, and &s subsidiar® s, had been acquired on 1 January 2022, the Group’s revenue would have been
£1,030,815,000 and net lass would have been £40.772 000

Graoss coritractual amounts of current assets recenablus as at acquisit an date are £304,000 wihich are expected to be collected.

There ware na other corporate acquisitions in 2022 .

35. Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The ultamate contraliing parties at the balance shest date were Liberty Global pk and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc , which owned
LGCIHoWCo | BY and Discovery Intemational UK Holdings Limited, respectively, which are joint owners of DLG Acquisitions
Limited .
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36. Parent audit exemption

The tollowing subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of this Act relating to the audit of accounts under section 4794 of the

Companies Act 2006:
Name of Company Company Nurnber
CAZ Productions Limited 12749934
Zero Chill Productions Limited 12021001
Champion TV finance Ltd 13776816
[ Aurora Media Worldwide UK Limited 5094691
?ntley Productions Limited 1823410
Company Television Limited 3522155
| Company Pictures Limited 3733209
Atrium TV Limited 10633584
| Red Raoster Television Limited 2534147
| Mersey Acquisitions Limited 5470620
Maror Production Services Limited 8874907
ETS financing 2 Limited 9168112
DL Financing 1 Limited 9168099
—-E\;embty Film & Television Limited 2918727
All3Media USA Limited 8304115
Wings Acquisition Company Limited 10676690
Maneda Productions Limited 2952809
All3Media Holdings Limited 5860302
AlR3Media Finance Limited 5860159
AllsMedia Limited 4782820
DIGITAL RIGHTS GRDUP LIMITED 5978061
Annika Stranded Finance Limited 12862200
Wild West Finance Limited 12769755
| Rainforest Finance Limited 11683190
All3mpedia International Limited 3203247
The Lime Pictures Holding Company Limited 1588328
Mersey P L Lirmited 1475995
Lion Television Limited 3336416
| Lime Pictures {Nursery) Limited 10045606
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35, Parent audit exemption (continued)

Lime Pictures (HH} Limited 10211220
Lime Entertainment Limited 12462712
Ravenscourt Services Limited 3534197
Lion Tetevsion North Lrited 3645028
Lion Cubs Lirnited 3927900
Lion Media timited 3927869
Littde Cot Stud s dimited 8413628
Hit Netwaorks Ltd 10559854
Maverick Te'evsion Limited 2366002
Merton Books Limited 8898639
New Pictures Limited 8241917
Witch ery Pictures Lamited 11111295
North One Televison Limited 2315596
DirtQuake Limited 10741836
Etectric Talent Limited 6389398
Betty TV Limited 4311471
OF Productions {Us) Limited 11372899
Objective Media Graup Limited 2705218
QF Productions {Toast] Limited 12908807
QOne Potato Two Potato L-mited 6572441
Raw Factual Limited 11256249
Raw Scripted Limited 11256227
Raw 1990 Limited (previously Raw Vogue Limited)} 14167110
Raw Calfornia Limited (previously Raw Wild West Limited) 13947748
Westbridge Preductions Limited 9483090
Studio Lambert Limited 5481004
Studio Lambert Associates Lmited 9227451
Stud © Lambert Media Limited 12115640
Two Brothers Pictures U'mited 7822665
Unstoppable Film and Television Limited 9790290
West Road Pictures Uimited 11780008
DALG Productions Limited 12879938
Da g 2 Productions Limited 13977037
CA2 Productions Lirmted 12749934
TSP2 Produgtions Limited 11483582
Mud Productions Limited 12208883
Reguiem Productions Limited 10475471
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